Board:

]
q Allen Amsler, Chairman Charles M. Joye I, PE.
e‘ : Ann B. Kirol, DDS, Secretary L. Clarence Batts, Jr.
R. Kenyon Wells David W. Gillespie, MD

Healthy People. Healthy Communities

South Carolina Board of Health and Environmental Control

Agenda
April 5, 2017

Call to Order - 10:00 a.m., Board Room (#3420)
South Carolina Department of Health and Environmental Control
2600 Bull Street, Columbia, S.C.

1. Minutes of March 9 meeting
2. Placement of Dronabinol (Syndros) Into Schedule Il SC Controlled Substances.
3. Final Review Conference - Docket No. 17-RFR-12, Keenan Energy Group f/k/a Keenan Qil Co.

Executive Session (if needed)
Adjournment

Note:  The April 13 meeting of the S.C. Board of Health and Environmental Control has been cancelled.
The next scheduled meeting will be May 11.

S.C. Department of Health and Environmental Control

2600 Bull Street, Columbia, SC 29201 803) 898-3432 www.scdhec.gov



BOARD OF HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL
Summary Sheet
April 5, 2017

X Action
Information

I. SUBJECT: Placement of Dronabinol (Syndros) into Schedule 11 for Controlled Substances

Il. FACTS: Controlled substances are governed by the Controlled Substances Act (CSA), found
at Title 44, Chapter 53, of the S.C. Code of Laws. Section 44-53-160 is titled “Manner in which
changes in schedule of controlled substances shall be made.” Pursuant to this section, controlled
substances are generally designated by the General Assembly, upon recommendation by DHEC.
Schedule 11 substances are listed in Section 44-53-210. Section 44-53-160(C) provides a process
by which DHEC can expeditiously designate substance as a controlled substance if the federal
government has so designated.

Section 44-53-160(C) states:

If a substance is added, deleted, or rescheduled as a controlled substance pursuant to
federal law or regulation, the department shall, at the first regular or special meeting of
the South Carolina Board of Health and Environmental Control within thirty days after
publication in the federal register of the final order designating the substance as a
controlled substance or rescheduling or deleting the substance, add, delete, or reschedule
the substance in the appropriate schedule. The addition, deletion, or rescheduling of a
substance by the department pursuant to this subsection has the full force of law unless
overturned by the General Assembly. The addition, deletion, or rescheduling of a
substance by the department pursuant to this subsection must be in substance identical
with the order published in the federal register effecting the change in federal status of
the substance. Upon the addition, deletion, or rescheduling of a substance, the department
shall forward copies of the change to the Chairman of the Medical Affairs Committee and
the Judiciary Committee of the Senate, the Medical, Military, Public and Municipal
Affairs Committee and the Judiciary Committee of the House of Representatives, and to
the Clerks of the Senate and House, and shall post the schedules on the department’s
website indicating the change and specifying the effective date of the change.

On July 1, 2016, the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA) approved a new drug
application for Syndros, a drug product consisting of dronabinol [(-)-delta-9-
transtetrahydrocannabinol (delta-9-THC)] oral solution. Thereafter, the Department of Health
and Human Services (HHS) provided the Drug Enforcement Administration (DEA) with a
scheduling recommendation that would result in Syndros (and other oral solutions containing
dronabinol) being placed in schedule 11 of the Controlled Substances Act (CSA). In accordance
with the CSA, as revised by the Improving Regulatory Transparency for New Medical Therapies
Act, DEA is hereby issuing an interim final rule placing FDA-approved products of oral
solutions containing dronabinol in schedule Il of the CSA. DATES: The effective date of this
rulemaking is March 23, 2017. https://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/FR-2017-03-23/pdf/2017-

05809.pdf.




Federal Authority

Under the Improving Regulatory Transparency for New Medical Therapies Act (Pub. L. 114—
89), which was signed into law on November 25, 2015, DEA is required to commence an
expedited scheduling action with respect to certain new drugs approved by the FDA. As
provided in 21 U.S.C. 811(j), this expedited scheduling is required where both of the following
conditions apply:
(1) The Secretary of HHS has advised DEA that a New Drug Application (NDA) has
been submitted for a drug that has a stimulant, depressant, or hallucinogenic effect on the
central nervous system, and that it appears that such drug has an abuse potential and
(2) the Secretary recommends that DEA control the drug in schedule IL, III, IV, or V
pursuant to 21 U.S.C. 811(a) and (b).

In these circumstances, DEA is required to issue an interim final rule controlling the drug within
90 days. The law further states that the 90-day timeframe starts the later of:
(1) the date DEA receives the HHS scientific and medical evaluation/scheduling
recommendation or
(2) the date DEA receives notice of the NDA approval by HHS. In addition, the law
specifies that the rulemaking shall become immediately effective as an interim final rule
without requiring the DEA to demonstrate good cause therefor.

Thus, the purpose of subsection (j) is to speed the process by which DEA schedules newly
approved drugs that are currently either in schedule I or not controlled (but which have sufficient
abuse potential to warrant control) so that such drugs may be marketed without undue delay
following FDA approval.

Subsection (j) further provides that the interim final rule shall give interested persons the
opportunity to comment and to request a hearing. After the conclusion of such proceedings, DEA
must issue a final rule in accordance with the scheduling criteria of subsections 21 U.S.C.
811(b), (c), and (d) and 21 U.S.C. 812(b).

Background

Syndros is an oral solution that contains 5 mg of dronabinol (delta-9- THC) per mL of solution.
Dronabinol is the generic name (International Nonproprietary Name, INN) for the (-) delta-9-
trans isomer of tetrahydrocannabinol (THC), the primary psychoactive substance in marijuana.
On June 1, 2015, Insys Therapeutics (Sponsor) submitted an NDA to the U.S. Food and Drug
Administration (FDA) for Syndros, an oral formulation of dronabinol. The FDA accepted the
NDA filing for Syndros on August 6, 2015 and approved the NDA on July 5, 2016. On
December 28, 2016, the DEA received notification that HHS/FDA approved Syndros for the
treatment of anorexia associated with weight loss in patients with Acquired Immune Deficiency
Syndrome (AIDS), and for the treatment of nausea and vomiting resulting from cancer
chemotherapy in patients who failed to respond to conventional antiemetic therapies.



Determination To Schedule FDA Approved Products Containing Dronabinol in an Oral
Solution

On December 28, 2016, the HHS provided the DEA with a scientific and medical evaluation and
scheduling recommendation related to dronabinol. Because DEA’s authority to issue this interim
final rule under subsection 811(j) is limited to drugs that are the subject of an approved NDA,
and because the NDA was limited to an oral solution containing dronabinol, DEA’s discussion
here of the scheduling criteria is likewise limited to oral solutions containing dronabinol in FDA
approved drug products.

2. HHS’s scientific and medical evaluation contained an eight-factor analysis of the abuse
potential of FDA-approved products of oral solutions containing dronabinol and recommended
that such products be placed in schedule II of the CSA. In response, the DEA reviewed the
scientific and medical evaluation and scheduling recommendation provided by the HHS, along
with all other relevant data, and completed its own eight-factor review document pursuant to 21
U.S.C. 811(c). The DEA concluded that FDA-approved dronabinol oral solutions met the 21
U.S.C. 812(b)(2) criteria for placement in schedule II of the CSA. Pursuant to subsection 811(j),
and based on the HHS recommendation, NDA approval by HHS/FDA, and DEA’s
determination, DEA is issuing this interim final rule to schedule FDA approved dronabinol oral
solution as a schedule II controlled substance under the CSA.

Included below is a brief summary of each factor as analyzed by the HHS and the DEA, and as
considered by the DEA in its scheduling action:

Eight-Factor Analysis

1. Its Actual or Relative Potential for Abuse: Dronabinol is a generic name for the (-) delta-
9-trans isomer of tetrahydrocannabinol (THC). THC is the primary psychoactive substance in
marijuana. Dronabinol is the active pharmaceutical ingredient in Syndros. As stated by HHS,
Marinol (synthetic dronabinol in sesame oil and encapsulated in a soft gelatin capsule) was
approved by the FDA for medical use on May 31, 1985 and placed in schedule I based on its
accepted medical use and high abuse potential. On July 2, 1999, Marinol was rescheduled from
schedule II to schedule I1I because of the findings of the DEA that the difficulty of separating
dronabinol from the sesame oil formulation and the delayed onset of behavioral effects due to
oral route administration supported a lower abuse potential of Marinol as compared to substances
in Schedule II.

HHS indicated that the formulation of Syndros (oral solution) is easier to abuse than Marinol
because this liquid formulation can be manipulated to produce concentrated extracts of
dronabinol for abuse by inhalation (smoking or vaping) or through other routes of administration.
Because of the large amount of dronabinol in Syndros oral solution it has a greater potential for
extraction than Marinol and thus has a greater abuse potential. Syndros oral solution can be
easily manipulated to other forms that can be easily abused through inhalation and oral routes of
administration. The 2014 and 2015 Monitoring the Future (MTF) 3 survey indicated that THC
containing products are being taken orally, smoked, and vaporized using devices such as e-
cigarettes. There is a lack of evidence pertaining to diversion of Syndros or Marinol from



legitimate drug channels. Syndros is not yet available on the market. Marinol and generic forms
that reference it, have low levels of abuse and diversion according to the HHS and DEA, and this
is attributed to the formulation of dronabinol in sesame oil.

2. Scientific Evidence of Its Pharmacological Effects, if Known: Dronabinol, also known as
THC, is the primary psychoactive substance in marijuana and is also the active pharmaceutical
ingredient in Syndros and Marinol. Some behavioral and other effects of dronabinol in humans
consist of dizziness, nausea, tachycardia, euphoria, enhanced sensory perception, heightened
imagination, impaired judgment, emotional lability, and increased appetite. Discriminative
stimulus effects of dronabinol are specific to CB1 cannabinoids, and unique because stimulants,
hallucinogens, opioids, benzodiazepines, barbiturates, NMDA antagonists, and antipsychotics do
not generalize to dronabinol.

3. The State of Current Scientific Knowledge Regarding the Drug or Other Substance:
Dronabinol is the generic name for (-)delta-9-transtetrahydrocannabinol (THC) and is chemically
known as (-)-(6aR-trans)- 6a,7,8,10a-tetrahydro-6,6,9-trimethyl-3- pentyl-6H-dibenzo[b,d]pyran-
1-ol and has the chemical formula C21H3002. It was found that Syndros oral solution and
Marinol capsules differ in their physiochemical properties. Specifically, Syndros, unlike Marinol,
can be manipulated such that the dronabinol can be evaporated into residues that can be
reconstituted for smoking or abused intravenously. According to HHS, Syndros contains a large
amount of dronabinol (150 mg of dronabinol in 30 mL of solution) and would be an easily
accessible source for abuse via the oral route.

4. Its History and Current Pattern of Abuse: There is a long history of abuse of THC in the
United States. HHS noted that dronabinol in Marinol capsules is difficult to extract and therefore,
cannot be used for smoking, vaping, or as an edible. The dronabinol in Syndros, however, is
relatively easy to extract and concentrated forms can be used for smoking, vaping, or the
sweetened alcoholic dronabinol in Syndros can be used as a substitute for THC in edibles. In the
2015 MTF survey, it was reported that teens were more likely to use ecigarettes (vaping) than
regular cigarettes (smoking). In this survey, 6.1 percent of 12th graders reported vaporizing
marijuana or hash oil in their last e-cigarette. Additionally, in a recent analysis of marijuana
users, 12 percent of users preferred vaping the drug over any other method and considered it a
safer alternative to smoking. As a result, these data suggest that if dronabinol extracts or
concentrates are available from dronabinol sources such as Syndros, a certain percent of the
population are likely to vape these substances.

5. The Scope, Duration, and Significance of Abuse: As noted by HHS, information on the
scope, duration, and significance of abuse of dronabinol was considered for both oral and
inhalation routes. Data analyzed from the 2014 Summer Styles Survey, a national representative
consumer panel survey of adult marijuana users aged 18 or older, showed that the majority of
current marijuana users prefer smoking marijuana. In the same survey, it was reported that 16
percent of the current users consumed THC containing edibles or drinks. Individuals who
preferred vaping (using a device to vaporize liquid THC) believed that vaping is ‘‘healthier,
better tasting”” and resulted in ‘ ‘better effects’” associated with marijuana and THC.




6. What, if any, Risk There is to the Public Health: As stated by HHS, labeling on the
Marinol packaging indicates that Central Nervous System (CNS) adverse reactions are dose-
related and subject to patient variability. CNS adverse reactions are more likely to occur at
higher doses of dronabinol. Following oral Marinol (dronabinol) doses of 0.4 mg/kg, CNS
symptoms such as amnesia, confusion, delusions, depression, and hallucinations have been
observed. According to HHS, it is assumed that Syndros oral solution will have similar adverse
effects to Marinol. One concern with Syndros is that there is a large amount of dronabinol
present in the product (150 mg dronabinol per bottle, 30 mL solution) that can easily be abused
orally and may result in unintended overdoses. Oral consumption of dronabinol, compared to
inhaled THC, may result in psychoactive effects that are delayed and stronger with an increased
risk of experiencing serious adverse events. When dronabinol (THC) is smoked, the drug rapidly
reaches the brain and psychoactive effects are felt within minutes of inhalation, which allows the
subject to control the dose more readily. Due to the absorption and metabolism by the liver
following oral ingestion of dronabinol, it takes longer for an individual to feel the psychoactive
effects. Therefore, the individual may underestimate the ingestion amount needed to feel the
psychoactive effects

7. Its Psychic or Physiological Dependence Liability: As stated in labeling for Marinol and
Syndros, psychological and physical dependence has been observed in healthy individuals
following use of dronabinol. Abrupt discontinuation of dronabinol in individuals receiving 210
mg/day (25 times the recommended daily dose for the treatment of anorexia associated with
weight loss in AIDS patients) for 12 to 16 days resulted in undesirable symptoms including
insomnia, irritability, and restlessness at 12 hours after discontinuation. These symptoms
worsened to include hot flashes, anorexia, sweating, rhinorrhea, loose stools, and hiccoughs at 24
hours after discontinuation of dronabinol.

8. Whether the Substance is an Immediate Precursor of a Substance Already Controlled
under the CSA: Dronabinol oral solution is not an immediate precursor of any controlled
substance.

Conclusion

After considering the scientific and medical evaluation conducted by the HHS, the HHS’
recommendation, and its own eight-factor analysis, the DEA has determined that these facts and
all relevant data constitute substantial evidence of a potential for abuse of dronabinol oral
solution. As such, the DEA hereby schedules FDA-approved products containing dronabinol oral
solution as controlled substances under the CSA.

Determination of Appropriate Schedule

The CSA lists the findings required to place a drug or other substance in any particular Schedule
(L, IL IIT, IV, or V). 21 U.S.C. 812(b). After consideration of the analysis and recommendation of
the Assistant Secretary for Health of the HHS and review of all available data, the Acting
Administrator of the DEA, pursuant to 21 U.S.C. 812(b)(2), finds that:



1. FDA-approved products containing dronabinol in an oral solution have a high potential for

abuse. The physicochemical properties of Syndros allow extraction of dronabinol for abuse
through oral or inhalation (smoking or vaping) routes. Dronabinol is not easily extractable from
Marinol. Oral abuse of dronabinol-containing products is associated with hallucinations, mood
alterations, and paranoia. The 2015 MTF Survey reported that 6.1 percent of the 12th graders
used e-cigarettes to vaporize marijuana or cannabinoid substances. Similarly, the 2014 Summer
Styles Survey, 16 percent of current marijuana users indicated that they have consumed
dronabinol containing edibles or drinks. These data collectively indicate FDA-approved oral
solutions containing dronabinol have high potential for abuse.

2. FDA-approved products containing dronabinol in an oral solution have a currently accepted
medical use in treatment in the United States. The FDA approved an oral solution containing
dronabinol (Syndros) for the treatment of anorexia associated with weight loss in patients with
AIDS, and for the treatment of nausea and vomiting associated with cancer chemotherapy in
patients who have failed to respond adequately to conventional antiemetic treatments.

3. FDA-approved products containing dronabinol in an oral solution may lead to severe physical
dependence. Following discontinuation of dronabinol at a dose 210 mg/day (25 times higher than
the recommended daily dose for anorexia associated with weight loss in AIDS patients) for 12 to
16 consecutive days, withdrawal symptoms including irritability, insomnia, and restlessness were
observed at 12 hours after discontinuation. These withdrawal symptoms worsened to include hot
flashes, sweating, rhinorrhea, loose stools, hiccoughs, and anorexia at 24 hours after
discontinuation of dronabinol. The withdrawal symptoms decreased gradually over the next 48
hours and patients reported having disturbed sleep for several weeks after discontinuation of
dronabinol.

Based on these findings, the Acting Administrator of the DEA concludes that FDA-approved
products containing dronabinol [(-)-delta-9-trans tetrahydrocannabinol (delta-9-THC)] in an oral
solution warrant control in schedule II of the CSA. 21 U.S.C. 812(b)(2).

RECOMMENDATION: Department staff recommend the Board place dronabinol [(-)-delta-9-
trans tetrahydrocannabinol (delta-9-THC)] in an oral solution, also known by the brand name
Syndros, into Scheduled II of the SC Controlled Substances Act, effective immediately.

z&ﬁ\

Lisa Thomson, Bureau Chief “Stielly y, Dep(ty Director
Bureau of Drug Control Health lations

March 29, 2017



o
N

%

l-l’(j

Federal Register/Vol. 82, No. 55/ Thursday, March 23, 2017 /Rules and Regulations

14815

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Drug Enforcement Administration

21 CFR Part 1308
[Docket No. DEA-344]

Schedules of Controlled Substances:
Placement of FDA-Approved Products
of Oral Solutions Containing
Dronabinol [(-)-delta-9-trans-
tetrahydrocannabinol (delta-9-THC)] in
Schedule I!

AGENCY: Drug Enforcement
Administration, Department of Justice.
ACTION: Interim final rule, with request
for comments.

SUMMARY: On July 1, 2016, the U.S. Food
and Drug Administration (FDA)
approved a new drug application for
Syndros, a drug product consisting of
dronabinol [(-)-delta-9-trans-
tetrahydrocannabinol (delta-9-THC)]
oral solution. Thereafter, the
Department of Health and Human
Services (HHS) provided the Drug
Enforcement Administration (DEA) with
a scheduling recommendation that
would result in Syndros (and other oral
solutions containing dronabinol) being
placed in schedule II of the Controlled
Substances Act (CSA). In accordance
with the CSA, as revised by the
Improving Regulatory Transparency for
New Medical Therapies Act, DEA is
hereby issuing an interim final rule
placing FDA-approved products of oral
solutions containing dronabinol in
schedule II of the CSA.
DATES: The effective date of this
rulemaking is March 23, 2017.
Interested persons may file written
comments on this rulemaking in
accordance with 21 CFR 1308.43(g).
Electronic comments must be
submitted, and written comments must
be postmarked, on or before April 24,
2017. Commenters should be aware that
the electronic Federal Docket
Management System will not accept
comments after 11:59 p.m. Eastern Time
on the last day of the comment period.
Interested persons, defined at 21 CFR
1300.01 as those “adversely affected or
aggrieved by any rule or proposed rule
issuable pursuant to section 201 of the
Act (21 U.S.C. 811),” may file a request
for hearing or waiver of hearing
pursuant to 21 CFR 1308.44. Requests
for hearing and waivers of an
opportunity for a hearing or to
participate in a hearing must be
received on or before April 24, 2017.
ADDRESSES: To ensure proper handling
of comments, please reference “Docket
No. DEA-344" on all correspondence,
including any attachments.

¢ Electronic comments: The Drug
Enforcement Administration encourages
that all comments be submitted
electronically through the Federal
eRulemaking Portal, which provides the
ability to type short comments directly
into the comment field on the Web page
or attach a file for lengthier comments.
Please go to http://www.regulations.gov
and follow the online instructions at
that site for submitting comments. Upon
completion of your submission, you will
receive a Comment Tracking Number for
your comment. Please be aware that
submitted comments are not
instantaneously available for public
view on Regulations.gov. If you have
received a Comment Tracking Number,
your comment has been successfully
submitted and there is no need to
resubmit the same comment.

¢ Paper comments: Paper comments
that duplicate the electronic submission
are not necessary and are discouraged.
Should you wish to mail a paper
comment in lieu of an electronic
comment, it should be sent via regular
or express mail to: Drug Enforcement
Administration, Attn: DEA Federal
Register Representative/DRW, 8701
Morrissette Drive, Springfield, VA
22152.

¢ Hearing requests: All requests for
hearing and waivers of participation
must be sent to: Drug Enforcement
Administration, Attn: Acting
Administrator, 8701 Morrissette Drive,
Springfield, Virginia 22152, All requests
for hearing and waivers of participation
should also be sent to: (1) Drug
Enforcement Administration, Attn:
Hearing Clerk/L], 8701 Morrissette
Drive, Springfield, Virginia 22152; and
(2) Drug Enforcement Administration,
Attn: DEA Federal Register
Representative/DRW, 8701 Morrissette
Drive, Springfield, Virginia 22152.
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
Michael J. Lewis, Diversion Control
Division, Drug Enforcement
Administration; Mailing Address: 8701
Morrissette Drive, Springfield, Virginia
22152; Telephone: (202) 598-8953.
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

Posting of Public Comments

Please note that all comments
received are considered part of the
public record. They will, unless
reasonable cause is given, be made
available by the Drug Enforcement
Administration (DEA) for public
inspection online at http://
www.regulations.gov. Such information
includes personal identifying
information (such as your name,
address, etc.) voluntarily submitted by
the commenter. The Freedom of

Information Act (FOIA) applies to all
comments received. If you want to
submit personal identifying information
(such as your name, address, etc.) as
part of your comment, but do not want
it to be made publicly available, you
must include the phrase “PERSONAL
IDENTIFYING INFORMATION" in the
first paragraph of your comment. You
must also place all of the personal
identifying information you do not want
made publicly available in the first
paragraph of your comment and identify
what information you want redacted.

If you want to submit confidential
business information as part of your
comment, but do not want it to be made
publicly available, you must include the
phrase “CONFIDENTIAL BUSINESS
INFORMATION” in the first paragraph
of your comment. You must also
prominently identify the confidential
business information to be redacted
within the comment.

Comments containing personal
identifying information and confidential
business information idenlified as
directed above will generally be made
publicly available in redacted form. If a
comment has so much contfidential
business information or personal
identifying information that it cannot be
effectively redacted, all or part of that
comment may not be made publicly
available. Comments posted to hitp://
www.regulations.gov may include any
personal identifying information (such
as name, address, and phone number)
included in the text of your electronic
submission that is not identified as
directed above as confidential.

An electronic copy of this document
and supplemental information,
including the complete Department of
Health and Human Services and Drug
Enforcement Administration eight-factor
analyses, to this interim final rule are
available at http://www.regulations.gov
for easy reference.

Request for Hearing, Notice of
Appearance at Hearing, or Waiver of
Participation in Hearing

Pursuant to 21 U.S.C. 811(a), this
action is a formal rulemaking “on the
record after opportunity for a hearing.”
Such proceedings are conducted
pursuant to the provisions of the
Administrative Procedure Act (APA), 5
U.S8.C. 551-559. 21 CFR 1308.41—
1308.45; 21 CFR part 1316, subpart D.
In accordance with 21 CFR 1308.44(a)
through (c), requests for a hearing,
notices of appearance, and waivers of an
opportunity for a hearing or to
participate in a hearing may be
submitted only by interested persons,
defined as those “adversely affected or
aggrieved by any rule or proposed rule



14816

Federal Register/Vol. 82, No. 55/ Thursday, March 23, 2017 /Rules and Regulations

issuable pursuant to section 201 of the
Act (21 U.S.C. 811).” 21 CFR 1300.01.
Requests for a hearing and notices of
participation must conform to the
requirements of 21 CFR 1308.44(a) or
(b), as applicable, and include a
statement of the interest of the person in
the proceeding and the objections or
issues, if any, concerning which the
person desires to be heard. Any waiver
of an opportunity for a hearing must
conform to the requirements of 21 CFR
1308.44(c) including a written statement
regarding the interested person’s
position on the matters of fact and law
involved in any hearing.

Please note that pursuant to 21 U.S.C.
811(a), the purpose and subject matter
of the hearing are restricted to ““(A)
find[ing] that such drug or other
substance has a potential for abuse, and
(B) mak[ing] with respect to such drug
or other substance the findings
prescribed by subsection (b) of section
812 of this title for the schedule in
which such drug is to be placed * * *.”
Requests for a hearing and waivers of
participation in the hearing should be
submilted to DEA using the address
information provided above.

Legal Authority

Under the Improving Regulatory
Transparency for New Medical
Therapies Act (Pub. L. 114-89), which
was signed into law on November 25,
2015, DEA is required to commence an
expedited scheduling action with
respect to certain new drugs approved
by the FDA. As provided in 21 U.S.C.
811(j), this expedited scheduling is
required where both of the following
conditions apply: {1) The Secretary of
HHS has advised DEA that a New Drug
Application (NDA) has been submitted
for a drug that has a stimulant,
depressant, or hallucinogenic effect on
the central nervous system, and that it
appears that such drug has an abuse
potential and (2) the Secretary
recommends that DEA control the drug
in schedule I1, 111, IV, or V pursuant to
21 U.S.C. 811(a) and (b). In these
circumstances, DEA is required to issue
an interim final rule controlling the
druiwithin 90 days.

The law further states that the 90-day
timeframe starts the later of (1) the date
DEA receives the HHS scientific and
medical evaluation/scheduling
recommendation or (2) the date DEA
receives notice of the NDA approval by
HHS. In addition, the law specifies that
the rulemaking shall become
immediately effective as an interim final
rule without requiring the DEA to
demonstrate good cause therefor. Thus,
the purpose of subsection (j) is to speed
the process by which DEA schedules

newly approved drugs that are currently
either in schedule I or not controlled
(but which have sufficient abuse
potential to warrant control) so that
such drugs may be marketed without
undue delay following FDA approval.?

Subsection (j) further provides that
the interim final rule shall give
interested persons the opportunity to
comment and to request a hearing. After
the conclusion of such proceedings,
DEA must issue a final rule in
accordance with the scheduling criteria
of subsections 21 U.S.C. 811(bh), (c), and
(d) and 21 U.S.C. 812(b).

Background

Syndros is an oral solution that
contains 5 mg of dronabinol (delta-9-
THC) per mL of solution. Dronabinol is
the generic name (International
Nonproprietary Name, INN) for the (-)
delta-9-trans isomer of
tetrahydrocannabinol (THC), the
primary psychoactive substance in
marijuana. On June 1, 2015, Insys
Therapeutics (Sponsor) submitted an
NDA to the U.S. Food and Drug
Administration (FDA) for Syndros, an
oral formulation of dronabinol. The
FDA accepted the NDA filing for
Syndros on August 6, 2015 and
approved the NDA on July 5, 2016. On
December 28, 2016, the DEA received
notification that HHS/FDA approved
Syndros for the treatment of anorexia
associated with weight loss in patients
with Acquired Immune Deficiency
Syndrome (AIDS), and for the treatment
of nausea and vomiting resulting from
cancer chemotherapy in patients who
failed to respond to conventional anti-
emetic therapies.

Determination To Schedule FDA-
Approved Products Containing
Dronabinol in an Oral Solution

On December 28, 2016, the HHS
provided the DEA with a scientific and
medical evaluation and scheduling
recommendation related to dronabinol.
Because DEA’s authority to issue this
interim final rule under subsection
811(j) is limited to drugs that are the
subject of an approved NDA, and
because the NDA was limited to an oral
solution containing dronabinol, DEA’s
discussion here of the scheduling
criteria is likewise limited to oral
solutions containing dronabinol in FDA-
approved drug products.2 HHS’s

1Given the parameters of subsection (j), in DEA’s
view, it would not apply to a reformulation of a
drug containing a substance currently in schedules
II through V for which an NDA has recently been
approved.

2To the extent HHS’s submissions to DEA are
outside the scope of this interim final rule (i.e.,
those addressing dronabinel beyond that contained

scientific and medical evaluation
contained an eight-factor analysis of the
abuse potential of FDA-approved
products of oral solutions containing
dronabinol and recommended that such
products be placed in schedule II of the
CSA.

In response, the DEA reviewed the
scientific and medical evaluation and
scheduling recommendation provided
by the HHS, along with all other
relevant data, and completed its own
eight-faclor review document pursuant
to 21 U.S.C. 811(c). The DEA concluded
that FDA-approved dronabinol oral
solutions met the 21 U.S.C, 812(b)(2)
criteria for placement in schedule 1I of
the CSA.

Pursuant to subsection 811(j), and
based on the HHS recommendation,
NDA approval by HHS/FDA, and DEA’s
determination, DEA is issuing this
interim final rule to schedule FDA-
approved dronabino] oral solution as a
schedule II controlled substance under
the CSA.

Included below is a brief summary of
each factor as analyzed by the HHS and
the DEA, and as considered by the DEA
in its scheduling action. Please note that
both the DEA and HHS analyses are
available in their entirety under
“Supporting Documents’’ in the public
docket for this interim final rule at
http://www.regulations.gov, under
Docket Number “DEA-344.” Full
analysis of, and citations to, the
information referenced in the summary
may also be found in the supporting and
related material.

1. Its Actual or Relative Potential for
Abuse: Dronabinol is a generic name for
the (-) delta-9-trans isomer of
tetrahydrocannabinol (THC). THC is the
primary psychoactive substance in
marijuana. Dronabinol is the active
pharmaceutical ingredient in Syndros.
As stated by HHS, Marinol (synthetic
dronabinol in sesame oil and
encapsulated in a soft gelatin capsule)
was approved by the FDA for medical
use on May 31, 1985 and placed in
schedule II based on its accepted
medical use and high abuse potential.
On July 2, 1999, Marinol was
rescheduled from schedule II to
schedule III because of the findings of
the DEA that the difficulty of separating
dronabinol from the sesame oil
formulation and the delayed onset of
behavioral effects due to oral route
administration supported a lower abuse
potential of Marinol as compared to
substances in Schedule II. 64 FR 35928.

According to HHS, although Syndros
oral solution and Marinol capsules have

in an FDA-approved oral solution), they will not be
addressed in this document.



Federal Register/Vol. 82, No. 55/Thursday, March 23, 2017 /Rules and Regulations

14817

the same pharmacology, these
formulations differ in their physical and
chemical properties. Both these
formulations have abuse potential as
demonstrated by their effects on
subjective scores of “Drug Liking" in
human abuse potential studies. HHS
indicated that the formulation of
Syndros (oral solution) is easier to abuse
than Marinol because this liquid
formulation can be manipulated to
produce concentrated extracts of
dronabinol for abuse by inhalation
(smoking or vaping) or through other
routes of administration. Because of the
large amount of dronabinol in Syndros
oral solution it has a greater potential
for extraction than Marinol and thus has
a greater abuse potential. Based on the
data from in vitro studies conducted by
the Sponsor, the large amount of
dronabinol in the Syndros formulation,
its pharmacokinetics upon oral
administration, and its contribution to
marijuana psychoactivity, HHS stated
that the abuse potential of the
dronabinol oral solution is similar to
that of other THC containing products
such as concentrates, infused edibles
and drinks. Similar to these THC
containing products, Syndros oral
solution can be easily manipulated to
other forms that can be easily abused
through inhalation and oral routes of
administration.

The 2014 and 2015 Monitoring the
Future (MTF) 3 survey indicated that
THC containing products are being
taken orally, smoked, and vaporized
using devices such as e-cigarettes. There
is a lack of evidence pertaining to
diversion of Syndros or Marinol from
legilimate drug channels. Syndros is not
yet available on the market. Marinol and
generic forms that reference it, have low
levels of abuse and diversion according
to the HHS and DEA, and this is
attributed to the formulation of
dronabinol in sesame oil.

2. Scientific Evidence of Its
Pharmacological Effects, if Known:
Dronabinol, also known as THC, is the
primary psychoactive substance in
marijuana and is also the active
pharmaceutical ingredient in Syndros
and Marinol. Dronabinol binds to and
activates the cannabinoid receptors
(CB1 and CB2). HHS states that CB1
receptors activation underlie the
psychotropic effects and many other
pharmacological effects of dronabinol.
Some behavioral and other effects of
dronabinol in humans consist of

3MTF is a research program conducted at the
University of Michigan’s Institute for Social
Research, under grants from NIDA. MTF tracks drug
use trends among American adolescents in the 81h,
10th, and 12th grades and high school graduates
into adulthood by conducting national surveys.

dizziness, nausea, tachycardia,
euphoria, enhanced sensory perception,
heightened imagination, impaired
judgment, emotional lability, and
increased appetite. Dronabinol has been
reported to be self-administered
intravenously by squirrel monkeys and
intracerebroventricularly by rats.
Discriminative stimulus effects of
dronabinol are specific to CB1
cannabinoids, and unique because
stimulants, hallucinogens, opioids,
benzodiazepines, barbiturates, NMDA
antagonists, and antipsychotics do not
generalize to dronabinol.

3. The State of Current Scientific
Knowledge Regarding the Drug or Other
Substance: Dronabinol is the generic
name for (-)delta-9-trans-
tetrahydrocannabinol (THC) and is
chemically known as (-)-(6aR-trans)-
6a,7,8,10a-tetrahydro-6,6,9-trimethyl-3-
pentyl-6H-dibenzo[b,d]pyran-1-ol and
has the chemical formula Cs1H300;. At
room temperature (25 °C), dronabinol is
a light-yellow oil and hardens upon
refrigeration (4 °C) and is insoluble in
water. The FDA-approved Syndros
formulation consists of 5 mg
dronabinol/mL of a 50 percent w/w
alcoholic solution. Syndros will be
marketed as 30 mL aliquots in clear,
amber glass bottles and each bottle will
contain 150 mg dronabinol.

In vitro manipulation studies with
Syndros and Marinol (positive control)
were conducted by the Sponsor. It was
found that Syndros oral solution and
Marinol capsules differ in their
physiochemical properties. Specifically,
Syndros, unlike Marinol, can be
manipulated such that the dronabinol
can be evaporated into residues that can
be reconstituted for smoking or abused
intravenously. According to HHS,
Syndros contains a large amount of
dronabinol (150 mg of dronabinol in 30
mL of solution) and would be an easily
accessible source for abuse via the oral
route.

4. Its History and Current Pattern of
Abuse: There is a long history of abuse
of THC in the United States. HHS noted
that dronabinol in Marinol capsules is
difficult to extract and therefore, cannot
be used for smoking, vaping, or as an
edible. The dronabinol in Syndros,
however, is relatively easy to extract
and concentrated forms can be used for
smoking, vaping, or the sweetened
alcoholic dronabinol in Syndros can be
used as a substitute for THC in edibles.
In the 2015 MTF survey, it was reported
that teens were more likely to use e-
cigarettes (vaping) than regular
cigarettes (smoking). In this survey, 6.1
percent of 12th graders reported
vaporizing marijuana or hash oil in their
last e-cigarette. Additionally, in a recent

analysis of marijuana users, 12 percent
of users preferred vaping the drug over
any other method and considered it a
safer alternative to smoking. As a result,
these data suggest that if dronabinol
extracts or concentrates are available
from dronabinol sources such as
Syndros, a certain percent of the
population are likely to vape these
substances.

5. The Scope, Duration, and
Significance of Abuse: As noted by
HHS, information on the scope,
duration, and significance of abuse of
dronabinol was considered for both oral
and inhalation routes. Data analyzed
from the 2014 Summer Styles Survey, a
national representative consumer panel
survey of adult marijuana users aged 18
or older, showed that the majority of
current marijuana users prefer smoking
marijuana. In the same survey, it was
reported that 16 percent of the current
users consumed THC containing edibles
or drinks. Individuals who preferred
vaping (using a device to vaporize
liquid THC) believed that vaping is
“healthier, better tasting’’ and resulted
in “better effects” associated with
marijuana and THC.

6. What, if any, Risk There is to the
Public Health: As stated by HHS,
labeling on the Marinol packaging
indicates that Central Nervous System
(CNS) adverse reactions are dose-related
and subject to patient variability. CNS
adverse reactions are more likely to
occur at higher doses of dronabinol,
Following oral Marinol (dronabinol)
doses of 0.4 mg/kg, CNS symptoms such
as amnesia, confusion, delusions,
depression, and hallucinations have
been observed. According to HHS, it is
assumed that Syndros oral solution will
have similar adverse effects to Marinol.
One concern with Syndros is that there
is a large amount of dronabinol present
in the product (150 mg dronabinol per
bottle, 30 mL solution) that can easily be
abused orally and may result in
unintended overdoses.

Oral consumption of dronabinol,
compared to inhaled THC, may result in
psychoactive effects that are delayed
and stronger with an increased risk of
experiencing serious adverse events.
When dronabinol (THC) is smoked, the
drug rapidly reaches the brain and
psychoactive effects are felt within
minutes of inhalation, which allows the
subject to control the dose more readily.
Due to the absorption and metabolism
by the liver following oral ingestion of
dronabinol, it takes longer for an
individual to feel the psychoactive
effects. Therefore, the individual may
underestimate the ingestion amount
needed to feel the psychoactive effects



14818

Federal Register/Vol. 82, No. 55/ Thursday, March 23, 2017/Rules and Regulations

which may potentially result in an
overdose.

7. Iis Psychic or Physiological
Dependence Liability: As stated in
labeling for Marinol and Syndros,
psychological and physical dependence
has been observed in healthy
individuals following use of dronabinol.
Abrupt discontinuation of dronabinol in
individuals receiving 210 mg/day (25
times the recommended daily dose for
the treatment of anorexia associated
with weight loss in AIDS patients) for
12 to 16 days resulted in undesirable
symptoms including insomnia,
irritability, and restlessness at 12 hours
after discontinuation. These symptoms
worsened to include hot flashes,
anorexia, sweating, rhinorrhea, loose
stools, and hiccoughs at 24 hours after
discontinuation of dronabinol.

8. Whether the Substance is an
Immediate Precursor of a Substance
Already Controlled under the CSA:
Dronabinol oral solution is not an
immediate precursor of any controlled
substance.

Conclusion: After considering the
scientific and medical evaluation
conducted by the HHS, the HHS’
recommendation, and its own eight-
factor analysis, the DEA has determined
that these facts and all relevant data
constitute substantial evidence of a
potential for abuse of dronabinol oral
solution. As such, the DEA hereby
schedules FDA-approved products
containing dronabinol oral solution as
controlled substances under the CSA.

Determination of Appropriate Schedule

The CSA lists the findings required to
place a drug or other substance in any
particular Schedule (I, II, III, IV, or V).
21 U.S.C. 812(b). After consideration of
the analysis and recommendation of the
Assistant Secretary for Health of the
HHS and review of all available data,
the Acting Administrator of the DEA,
pursuant to 21 U.S.C. 812(b)(2), finds
that:

1. FDA-approved products containing
dronabinol in an oral solution have a
high potential for abuse. The
physicochemical properties of Syndros
allow extraction of dronabinol for abuse
through oral or inhalation (smoking aor
vaping) routes. Dronabinol is not easily
extractable from Marinol. Oral abuse of
dronabinol-containing products is
associated with hallucinations, mood
alterations, and paranoia. The 2015
MTF Survey reported that 6.1 percent of
the 12th graders used e-cigarettes to
vaporize marijuana or cannabinoid
substances. Similarly, the 2014 Summer
Styles Survey, 16 percent of current
marijuana users indicated that they have
consumed dronabinol containing

edibles or drinks. These data
collectively indicate FDA-approved oral
solutions containing dronabinol have
high potential for abuse.

2. FDA-approved products containing
dronabinol in an oral solution have a
currently accepted medical use in
treatment in the United States. The FDA
approved an oral solution containing
dronabinol (Syndros) for the treatment
of anorexia associated with weight loss
in patients with AIDS, and for the
treatment of nausea and vomiting
associated with cancer chemotherapy in
patients who have failed to respond
adequately to conventional antiemetic
treatments.

3. FDA-approved products containing
dronabinol in an oral solution may lead
to severe physical dependence.
Following discontinuation of
dronabinol at a dose 210 mg/day (25
times higher than the recommended
daily dose for anorexia associated with
weight loss in AIDS patients) for 12 to
16 consecutive days, withdrawal
symptoms including irritability,
insomnia, and restlessness were
observed at 12 hours after
discontinuation. These withdrawal
symptoms worsened to include hot
flashes, sweating, rhinorrhea, loose
stools, hiccoughs, and anorexia at 24
hours after discontinuation of
dronabinol. The withdrawal symptoms
decreased gradually over the next 48
hours and patients reported having
disturbed sleep for several weeks after
discontinuation of dronabinol.

Based on these findings, the Acting
Administrator of the DEA concludes
that FDA-approved products containing
dronabinol [(-)-delta-9-trans
tetrahydrocannabinol (delta-9-THC)] in
an oral solution warrant control in
schedule II of the CSA. 21 U.S.C.
812(b)(2).

Requirements for Handling FDA-
Approved Products Containing
Dronabinol in an Oral Solution.

Preliminarily, it should be noted that
any form of dronabinol other than in an
FDA-approved drug product remains a
schedule I controlled substance, and
those who handle such material remain
subject to the regulatory controls, and
administrative, civil, and criminal
sanctions, applicable to schedule I
controlled substances set forth in the
CSA and DEA regulations. However, for
those who handle dronabinol oral
solution exclusively in the form of an
FDA-approved drug product, the
following is a summary of the schedule
II regulatory requirements that apply as
a result of this interim final rule:

1. Registration. Any person who
handles (manufactures, distributes,

reverse distributes, dispenses, imports,
exports, engages in research, or
conducts instructional activities or
chemical analysis with, or possesses)
FDA-approved products containing
dronabinol in an oral solution, or who
desires to handle such products, must
be registered with the DEA to conduct
such activities pursuant to 21 U.S.C.
822,823,957, and 958 and in
accordance with 21 CFR parts 1301 and
1312. Any person who currently
handles FDA-approved products
containing dronabinol in an oral
solution, and is not registered with the
DEA, must submit an application for
registration and may not continue to
handle such products, unless the DEA
has approved that application for
registration, pursuant to 21 U.S.C. 822,
823, 957, and 958, and in accordance
with 21 CFR parts 1301 and 1312.

2. Quota. Only registered
manufacturers are permitted to
manufacture FDA-approved products
containing dronabinol in an oral
solution in accordance with a quota
assigned pursuant to 21 U.S.C. 826 and
in accordance with 21 CFR part 1303.

3. Disposal of stocks. Upon obtaining
a schedule II registration to handle FDA-
approved products containing
dronabinol in an oral solution, any
person who does not desire or is not
able to maintain such registration must
surrender all quantities of such
products, or may transfer all quantities
of such products to a person registered
with the DEA in accordance with 21
CFR part 1317, in addition to all other
applicable federal, state, local, and tribal
laws.

4, Security. FDA-approved products
containing dronabinol in an oral
solution are subject to schedule I
security requirements and must be
handled and stored pursuant to 21
U.S8.C. 821, 823, and in accordance with
21 CFR 1301.71-1301.93.

5. Labeling and Packaging. All labels,
labeling, and packaging for commercial
containers of FDA-approved products
containing dronabinol in an oral
solution must comply with 21 U.S.C.
825 and 958(e), and be in accordance
with 21 CFR part 1302.

6. Inventory. Every DEA registrant
who possesses any quantity of FDA-
approved products containing
dronabinol in an oral solution must take
an inventory of such products on hand,
pursuant to 21 U.S.C. 827 and 958, and
in accordance with 21 CFR 1304.03,
1304.04, and 1304.11.

Any person who becomes registered
with the DEA to handle FDA-approved
products containing dronabinol in an
oral solution must take an initial
inventory of all stocks of controlled



Federal Register/Vol. 82, No. 55/ Thursday, March 23, 2017 /Rules and Regulations

14819

substances (including FDA-approved
products containing dronabinol in an
oral solution) on hand on the date the
registrant first engages in the handling
of controlled substances, pursuant to 21
U.S.C. 827 and 958, and in accordance
with 21 CFR 1304.03, 1304.04, and
1304.11.

After the initial inventory, every DEA
registrant must take a new inventory of
all stocks of controlled substances
(including FDA-approved products
containing dronabinol in an oral
solution) on hand every two years,
pursuant to 21 U.S.C. 827 and 958, and
in accordance with 21 CFR 1304.03,
1304.04, and 1304.11.

7. Records and Reports. Every DEA
registrant must maintain records and
submit reports for FDA-approved
products containing dronabinol in an
oral solution, pursuant to 21 U.S.C. 827
and 958(e), and in accordance with 21
CFR parts 1304, 1312, and 1317.

8. Orders for FDA-approved products
containing dronabinol in an oral
solution. Every DEA registrant who
distributes FDA-approved products
containing dronabinol in an oral
solution is required to comply with
order form requirements, pursuant to 21
U.S.C. 828, and in accordance with 21
CFR part 1305.

9. Prescriptions. All prescriptions for
FDA-approved products containing
dronabinol in an oral solution must
comply with 21 U.S.C. 829, and be
issued in accordance with 21 CFR parts
1306 and 1311, subpart C.

10. Manufacturing and Distributing.
In addition to the general requirements
of the CSA and DEA regulations that are
applicable to manufacturers and
distributors of schedule II controlled
substances, such registrants should be
advised that (consistent with the
foregoing considerations) any
manufacturing or distribution of FDA-
approved products containing
dronabinol in an oral solution may only
be for the legitimate purposes
authorized by the FDCA and CSA.

11. Importation and Exportation. All
importation and exportation of FDA-
approved products containing
dronabinol in an oral solution must be
in compliance with 21 U.S.C. 952, 953,
957, and 958, and in accordance with 21
CIR part 1312.

12. Liability. Any activity involving
FDA-approved products containing
dronabinol in an oral solution not
authorized by, or in violation of, the
CSA or its implementing regulations, is
unlawful, and may subject the person to
administrative, civil, and/or criminal
sanctions.

Regulatory Analyses

Administrative Procedure Act

As explained above, under 21 U.S.C.
811(j), where a new drug is (1) approved
by the Department of Health and Human
Services (HHS) and (2) HHS
recommends control in CSA schedule
[I-V, the DEA is required to issue an
interim final rule scheduling the drug
within 90 days. Additionally, the law
specifies that the rulemaking shall
become immediately effective as an
interim final rule without requiring the
DEA to demonstrate good cause.
Therefore, the standard notice-and-
comment requirements of section 553 of
the APA, 5 U.S.C. 553, do not apply to
this scheduling action.

Executive Orders 12866, Regulatory
Planning and Review, and 13563,
Improving Regulation and Regulatory
Review

In accordance with 21 U.S.C. 811(j),
this scheduling action is subject to
formal rulemaking procedures
performed “on the record after
opportunity for a hearing,” which are
conducted pursuant to the provisions of
5 U.S.C. 556 and 557. The CSA sets
forth the procedures and criteria for
scheduling a drug or other substance.
Such actions are exempt from review by
the Office of Management and Budget
(OMB) pursuant to section 3(d)(1) of
Executive Order 12866 and the
principles reaffirmed in Executive Order
13563.

Executive Order 12988, Civil Justice
Reform

This regulation meets the applicable
standards set forth in sections 3(a) and
3(b)(2) of Executive Order 12988 to
eliminate drafting errors and ambiguity,
minimize litigation, provide a clear legal
standard for affected conduct, and
promote simplification and burden
reduction.

Executive Order 13132, Federalism

This rulemaking does not have
federalism implications warranting the
application of Executive Order 13132.
The rule does not have substantial
direct effects on the States, on the
relationship between the national
government and the States, or on the
distribution of power and
responsibilities among the various
levels of government.

Executive Order 13175, Consultation
and Coordination With Indian Tribal
Governments

This rule does not have tribal

implications warranting the application
of Executive Order 13175. It does not

have substantial direct effects on one or
more Indian tribes, on the relationship
between the Federal government and
Indian tribes, or on the distribution of
power and responsibilities between the
Federal government and Indian tribes.

Regulatory Flexibility Act

In accordance with 5 U.S.C. 603(a),
“[w]henever an agency is required by [5
U.S.C. 553], or any other law, to publish
general notice of proposed rulemaking
for any proposed rule, or publishes a
notice of proposed rulemaking for an
interpretive rule involving the internal
revenue laws of the United States, the
agency shall prepare and make available
for public comment an initial regulatory
flexibility analysis.” As noted in the
above discussion regarding applicability
of the Administrative Procedure Act, the
notice-and-comment requirements of
section 553 of the APA, 5 U.S.C. 553, do
not apply to this scheduling action.
Consequently, the RFA does not apply
to this interim final rule.

Unfunded Mandates Reform Act of 1995

In accordance with the Unfunded
Mandates Reform Act (UMRA) of 1995,
2 U.S.C. 1501 ef seq., the DEA has
determined that this action would not
result in any Federal mandate that may
result “in the expenditure by State,
local, and tribal governments, in the
aggregate, or by the private sector, of
$100,000,000 or more (adjusted for
inflation) in any one year.” Therefore,
neither a Small Government Agency
Plan nor any other action is required
under UMRA of 1995.

Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995

This action does not impose a new
collection of information requirement
under the Paperwork Reduction Act of
1995. 44 U.S.C. 3501-3521. This action
would not impose recordkeeping or
reporting requirements on State or local
governments, individuals, businesses, or
organizations. An agency may not
conduct or sponsor, and a person is not
required to respond to, a collection of
information unless it displays a
currently valid OMB control number.

Congressional Review Act

This rule is not a major rule as
defined by section 804 of the Small
Business Regulatory Enforcement
Fairness Act of 1996 (Congressional
Review Act (CRA)). This rule will not
result in: an annual effect on the
economy of $100,000,000 or more; a
major increase in costs or prices for
consumers, individual industries,
Federal, State, or local government
agencies, or geographic regions; or
significant adverse effects on



14820

Federal Register/Vol. 82, No. 55/Thursday, March 23, 2017 /Rules and Regulations

competition, employment, investment,
productivity, innovation, or on the
ability of U.S.-based companies to
compete with foreign based companies
in domestic and export markets.
However, pursuant to the CRA, the DEA
has submitted a copy of this interim
final rule to both Houses of Congress
and to the Comptroller General.

List of Subjects in 21 CFR Part 1308

Administrative practice and
procedure, Drug traffic control,

Reporting and recordkeeping
requirements.

For the reasons sel out above, the DEA
amends 21 CFR part 1308 as follows:

PART 1308—SCHEDULES OF
CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES

m 1. The authority citation for 21 CFR
part 1308 continues to read as follows:

Authority: 21 U.S.C. 811, 812, 871(b),
unless otherwise noted.

m 2.In § 1308.12, add paragraph (f)(2) to
read as follows:

§1308.12 Schedule Il

* * * * *

[f)* * %

(2) Dronahinol [(-)-delta-9-trans tetrahydrocannabinel] in an oral solution in a drug product approved for marketing by the

U.S. Food and Drug AAIministration ....euieeieriiii ittt eveetee b et esaseeaease s seseessaseesseasesasmeaseatesssreernessssasrsessesenasas

* * * * *

Dated: March 20, 2017.
Chuck Rosenberg,
Acting Administrator.
[FR Doc. 2017-05809 Filed 3-22-17; 8:45 am)
BILLING CODE 4410-09-P

DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND
SECURITY

Coast Guard

33 CFR Part 117
[Docket No. USCG-2017-0100]

Drawbridge Operation Regulation; Des
Allemands Bayou, Des Allemands, LA

AGENCY: Coast Guard, DHS.
ACTION: Notice of deviation from
drawbridge regulation.

SUMMARY: The Coast Guard has issued a
temporary deviation from the operating
schedule that governs the Burlington
Northern Santa Fe Railroad swing span
drawbridge across Des Allemands
Bayou, mile 14.0, at Des Allemands, St.
Charles and Lafourche Parishes,
Louisiana. The deviation is necessary to
install two open-deck spans for
increased reliability of bridge
operations. This deviation allows the
bridge to remain in the closed-to-
navigation position for two (2) separate,
two-day periods.

DATES: This deviation is effective from
6 a.m. on April 20, 2017 through 12
noon on April 28, 2017.

ADDRESSES: The docket for this
deviation, [USCG-2017—-0100] is
available at http.//www.regulations.gov.
Type the docket number in the
“SEARCH” box and click “SEARCH”.
Click on Open Docket Folder on the line
associated with this deviation.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: If
you have questions on this temporary
deviation, call or email Giselle

MacDonald, Bridge Management
Specialist, Coast Guard; telephone 504—
671-2128, email Giselle.T.MacDonald@
uscg.mil.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: The
Burlington Northern Santa Fe Railroad
Company requested a temporary
deviation from the operating schedule
for the swing span drawbridge across
Des Allemands Bayou, mile 14.0, at Des
Allemands, St. Charles and Lafourche
Parishes, Louisiana. The deviation was
requested to install two open-deck
spans, one on each side of the existing
swing span, to increase the reliability of
bridge opening and closing operations.

The draw currently operates under 33
CFR 117.440(b). The draw of the
Burlington Northern Santa Fe Railroad
Bridge, Mile 14.0, shall open on signal
Monday through Friday from 7 a.m. to
3 p.m. At all other times the draw shall
open on signal if at least 4 hours notice
is given.

For purposes of this deviation, the
bridge will remain closed to navigation
for two separate dates, 30 hours each,
from 6 am. April 20, 2017 through 12
noon, April 21, 2017 and from 6 a.m.,
April 27, 2017 through 12 noon, April
28, 2017. During this deviation, vessels
will not be allowed to pass through the
bridge. The bridge has a vertical
clearance of 3 feet above mean high
water in the closed-to-navigation
position and unlimited in the open-to-
navigation position. Navigation on the
waterway consists of tugs with tows,
fishing vessels and recreational craft.

The Coast Guard will inform the users
of the waterway through our Local and
Broadcast Notices ta Mariners of the
change in operating schedule for the
bridge. The bridge will not be able to
open for emergencies and there is no
immediate alternate route for vessels to
pass.

In accordance with 33 CFR 117.35(e),
the drawbridge must return to its regular
operating schedule immediately at the

end of the effective period of this

temporary deviation. This deviation

from the operating regulations is

authorized under 33 CFR 117.35.
Dated: March 17, 2017.

Eric A. Washburn,

Bridge Administrator, Eighth Coast Guard
District.

[FR Doc. 2017-05810 Filed 3—22—17; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 9110-04-P

DEPARTMENT OF VETERANS
AFFAIRS

38 CFR Part 17
RIN 2900-AP73

Release of VA Records Relating to HIV

AGENCY: Department of Veterans Affairs.
ACTION: Final rule.

SUMMARY: The Department of Veterans
Affairs (VA) is amending its medical
regulations governing the release of VA
medical records. Specifically, VA is
eliminating the restriction on sharing a
negative test result for the human
immunodeficiency virus (HIV) with
veterans’ outside providers. HIV testing
is a common practice today in
healthcare and the stigma of testing that
may have been seen in the 1980s when
HIV was first discovered is no longer
prevalent. Continuing to protect
negative HIV tests causes delays and an
unnecessary burden on veterans when
VA ftries to share electronic medical
information with the veterans’ outside
providers through electronic health
information exchanges. For this same
reason, VA will also eliminate
resirictions on negative test results of
sickle cell anemia. This final rule
eliminates the current barriers to
electronic medical information
exchange.

DATES: This final rule is effective April
24, 2017.



South Carolina Board of Health and Environmental Control
Final Review Conference
April 5, 2017

Final Review Conference Docket No. 17-RFR-12, Keenan Oil Co.
Requests for Final Review were filed on February 8, 2017.

Parties and Counsel of Record
Keenan Energy Group f/k/a Keenan Oil Co.
represented by W. Thomas Lavender with Nexsen Pruet
South Carolina Department of Health and Environmental Control
Represented by Sara P. Bazemore, SCDHEC Office of General Counsel

Table of Contents

Note: Page #s for this record are located on the bottom right hand corner of the page.
Staff Decision dated January 24, 2017 — page 1

Request for Final Review filed February 8, 2017 — page 3

Staff Response — page 16

Clerk Correspondence — page 48

Letter Scheduling Final Review Conference — page 50

Administrative Record from Department — page 52



\Wdhec

Healthy People. Healthy Communities,

January 24, 2017

Keenan Oil Co., Inc.
PO Box 3218
Columbia, SC 29230-3218

Re:  Underground Storage Tank (UST) Permit — 07705
Green Electric Co., 2248 Sumtfer St., Columbia, SC
Report received — December 2, 2016

Dear Sir or Madam:

An assessment report received by the UST Management Division on Degember 2, 2018,
indicates that groundwater collected from a temporary monitoring well at this location Is
contaminated with petroleum constituents. A file review Indicates Keenan Qil Co., Inc. as the
tank owner at the time of tank removal and therefore, the responsible party for the petroleum
contamination documented in the Phase Il assessment. The State Underground Petroleum
Environmental Response Bank (SUPERB) Account provides financial assistance for the
cleanup of a site contaminated by a release from a regulated UST system provided that the
facility associated with the release mests certain eligibility criteria. The Division has determined
that this release Is sligible for cleanup using SUPERB funds. The responsible party must satisfy
a $25,000.00 deductible prior to the Division using SUPERB funds.

The SUPERB Act Section 44-2-130{E)(1) states: “An owner or operator of an underground
storage tank or his agent seeking to qualify for compensation from the Superb Account for site
rehabilitation shall submit a written application to the department.” For your conveniencs, a
SUPERB Account Application/Statement of Insurance form is enclosed. Please complete and
return the atiached form. You must request access to the SUPERB Account in order far the
Division to complete the SUPERB qualification process.

South Caroiina UST Control Regulation 61-92, Section 280.93(a) and 280.113 of the South
Carolina Underground Storage Tank Control Regulations requires that tank owners submit and
maintain proof of financial responsibility {FR) until subseguent corrective action is complete.

Should you have any questions pertaining to this matter, please contact me at (803) 898-0847.

Respectfully, ’D Q
ng_q A AT QQ Iy

Denlse M. Place

Regulatory Compliance Section

UST Management Division

Bureau of Land and Waste Management

Enclosure

S.C. Department of Health and Environmental Control
2600 Bull Street, Columbla, SC 2920} (802)898-3432  wwwiscdhec.gov

SCBHEC FRC 17-RFR-12 Keenan Qil 1 of 119



Superb Account Application

: dhec W - Ust Management Division -

N BT :

Pursuant to the Staté Underground Pefroleum Environmental Response Bank (SUF;ERE) Acf 44-24 30'(é)(1.)': “"An uwner
or operator of an underground storage tank or his agent seeking to qualify for compensation-from the SUPERB Account
for site rehabilitation shall submit a wiitten application to the department.” - 2w

PR

Pormit # ' B ___Faclity Name: SR
Facilily Address: : ' . - LR
Owner Name:
Owner Address; _
Owner Phone #:

For the following section, circle YES or NO: i
YES or NO | request compensation from the SUPERB Account for the release discovered/réportad on

Yow/your company must satisfy a $25,000.00 deductible prior to the Division using SUPERB funds (Pursuant o the
SUBERB Act 44-2-130). According to department records, you/your company had as your
financlal responslbility mechanism at the time the release was reporled, If this information Is Inaccurate, please correct it
by checking the appropriate mechanism below:

O Letter of Credit O insurance Polley O Seif-insurance 1 Surety Bond 0 Guarantee
INSURANGE STATEMENT

This site is potentially eligible to receive state monies to assist in site rehabilitation, Before ellgibility for the SUPERB funds

can be dstermined, writtan confirmation of the existence or non-existence of an enviranmental Insurance palicy for this site

Is required. Please circle YES or NO with regard to the following:

Is there now, or has there ever been an insurance policy or ather financial machanism that covers this UST release?
YES or NO

My policy provider Is
The policy number Is
The policy deducilble is Polloy ltmit:

if you have this type of insurance, please include a copy of the policy with this reportt.

Owner Signalure: Sworn before me this day
Print Signatory Name:, of , 20
Dats:

Notary Public {Signature)

for the State of

(if ather than South Carvlina, afiix seal)

SCHDEGC. UST Managemant Division, 2600 Bull Strest, Columbia, SC 26201, PHONE ({803) 898-0589, FAX (803) 898-0673, www.sedhec.goviust
DHEC 1300 (06/2014) SOUTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND ENYIRONMENTAL CONTROL

SCBHEC FRC 17-RFR-12 Keenan Qil 2 of 119



RECEIVED

FER 082017

Clerk, Board of Health
and Environmental Control
W. Thomas Lavender, Jr.

l 7 B R FR - \2" Adnh{ilggzjb;rsc

NEXSEN|PRUET

February 8, 2017

HAND DELIVERY

Ms. Lisa Lucas Longshore, Clerk

South Carolina Board of Health and Environmental Control
2600 Bull Street

Columbia, South Carolina 29201

Re:  Keenan Energy Company f/k/a Keenan Oil Co., Inc.
Underground Storage Tank (UST) Permit — 07705
Green Electric Co., 2248 Sumter St., Columbia, SC

Dear Ms. Longshore:

We represent Keenan Energy Company f/k/a Keenan Oil Co., Inc. (“Keenan”) in the
above-referenced matter.

Charleston
Charlotte

Columbia On November 7, 2008, this Board issued a Final Agency Decision in /n Re: Keenan
Oil Company, Board Docket No. 08-RFR-109 (“2008 Decision”). Attached as
Appendix A is a copy of the 2008 Decision. In the 2008 Decision, the Board held

scuilie that USTs which were removed prior to December 24, 1988, and reported to DHEC
Hilton Head in a March 14, 1989 site report (“1989 Site Report”) where not subject to a $25,000
deductible. Attached as Appendix B is a copy of the 1989 Site Report.

Greensboro

Myrile Beach

Raleigh By letter dated January 24, 2017, the Burecau of Land and Waste Management
(“Bureau”) notified Keenan that its was responsible for a $25,000 deductible for a
release from a UST removed prior to December 24, 1988 from the former Green
Electric Co., 2248 Sumter St., Columbia, SC (“Green Electric Site”) and reported to
DHEC in the very same March 14, 1989 report referenced above. A copy of the
January 24, 2017 letter to Keenan (“Staff Determination™) is attached as Appendix C.

Keenan asserts that the Staff Determination is in direct conflict with the Board’s
decision in the 2008 Decision. Pursuant to S.C. CODE ANN. § 44-1-60, Keenan
requests the DHEC Board’s final review of the Staff Determination that cleanup of
the Green Electric Site is subject to a $25,000 deductible prior to cleanup using

1230 Main Street g

Suite 700 (29201) ~ F 803.727.1454
PO BOX 2426 E TLavender@nexsenpruet.com
Columbia, SC 298202 Nexsen Pruet, LLC
www.nexsenpruet.com  Attormeys and Counselors at Law

SCBHEC FRC 17-RFR-12 Keenan Qil 3 of 119



Ms. Lisa Lucas Longshore
February 8, 2017
Page 2

SUPERB funds. Keenan requests that the Board conduct a final review of the Staff
Determination and find that the Green Electric Site is subject to a zero deductible
prior to cleanup using SUPERB funds. Our firm’s check in the amount of $100 for
the filing fee is enclosed.

While Keenan would assert that the reasons set forth above are sufficient for the
Board to grant the request and reverse the Staff Determination, additional background
is provided. SUPERB was originally enacted in 1988. (1988 S.C. Act No. 486). Prior
to December 24, 1988, Keenan closed and removed the UST at the Green Electric
Site in accordance with the 1988 statute and the applicable regulations. On March 14,
1989, Keenan provided the Department with a report on the closure and removal of a
number of USTs, including the UST at the Green Electric Site. Section 44-2-110 of
the 1988 Act, the statute in effect at the time of Keenan’s removal of the UST, created
an early detection incentive program (“amnesty”), which made “[a]ll sites involving
releases from underground storage tanks reported to the department any time from
midnight on December 31, 1987, to midnight on December 31, 1989 . . . qualified
sites for the expenditure of funds from the SUPERB Account, provided that a written
report is filed with respect thereto.” (1988 S.C. Act No. 486). In other words, as long
as the site was reported to the Department during the grace period, the site qualified
for SUPERB funds regardless of when the release occurred. Under the original
Section 44-2-130(A), a party reporting the site during the grace period was “eligible
to directly bill or be reimbursed for all reasonable costs incurred in connection with
site rehabilitation” up to one million dollars and was not responsible for any
deductible. (1988 S.C. Act No. 486) (emphasis added). The 1990 amendment to
Section 44-2-130(A) further emphasized that all reasonable costs could be recovered
“[flor sites reported during the grace period established under the early detection
incentive program.” (1990 S.C. Act no. 473). Since Keenan removed the UST at the
Green Electric Site and reported the site during the grace period, Keenan is not
responsible for any deductible associated with a release form the former UST,
regardless of when that release was discovered.

Additionally, Keenan removed the UST at the Green Electric Site and made the
required reporting to the Department in accordance with the regulations in effect at
the time of the removal. On May 22, 1985, the South Carolina Underground Storage
Tank Control Regulations were promulgated. These regulations were not updated
until] March 23, 1990, more than a year after Keenan’s removal of the UST.
Therefore, the 1985 regulations are the applicable regulations for the removal of the
UST at the Green Electric Site. These 1985 regulations outlined the process of
abandoning a UST by removing it from the ground in R.61-92.12.B and specified that
the owner of any abandoned UST must notify the Department in accordance with the
annual reporting requirements detailed in Section R.61-92.7.H. Under the 1985
South Carolina Underground Storage Tank Control Regulations, no further reporting
or testing was necessary. The 1989 Site Report satisfied the reporting requirement of

SCBHEC FRC 17-RFR-12 Keenan Qil 4 of 119



Ms. Lisa Lucas Longshore
February 8, 2017
Page 3

R.61-92 concerning the UST removal to the Department during the grace period as
affirmed by the 2008 Decision.

Although a 1995 amendment later shifted the focus from the reporting of the site to
the reporting of the release, this amendment did not exist at the time Keenan acted in
reliance upon the then current statute and closed the UST by removal. Under the law
existing at the time of removal, Keenan, having reported the site to the Department,
qualified to receive SUPERB funds to cover all reasonable costs incurred in
connection with site rehabilitation, regardless of when the release occurred, and was
not responsible for any deductible before receiving SUPERB funds. Having
proactively removed the UST in 1988 in reliance upon the law then existing, Keenan
is not responsible for a $25,000 deductible based on an amendment to statute that was
made almost a year after the UST was removed.

Keenan asserts that the Bureau is bound by the 2008 Decision relying upon the
identical factual basis. We appreciate the Board’s consideration of this request for
final review. If additional information or documentation is needed, please do not
hesitate to contact me.

Al
V omas Lavender, Jr.
EnClosures

cc: Keenan Energy Company

SCBHEC FRC 17-RFR-12 Keenan Qil 5 of 119



Appendix A

SCBHEC FRC 17-RFR-12 Keenan Qil 6 of 119



SOUTH CAROLINA BOARD OF HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL CONTRCL
FINAL AGENCY DECISION
In Re: Xeenan Qil Company
Board Docket No. 08-RFR-109

Appearances: W. Tommy Lavender, Jr., Esquire for Keenan Oil Company, Inc,
Requestor

Stephen P. Hightower, Esquire, for South Carolina Departinent of Health and
Environmental Control

This matter comes before the South Carolina Board of Health and Environmental Control
(Board) for final review pursuant to 8.C, Code Amn. § 44-1-60. On August 27, 2008,
Department staff issued letter determining that the Requestor was required to satisfy the twenty-
five thousand dollar ($25,000.00) deductible for the peiroleum release on propetty owned by
Carolina Tractor and Equipment site located at 7011 Garners Ferry Road, Columbia, South
Carolina (the “Site”). The Requestor filed a timely request for a final teview conference and the

conferenoe was held on Qctober 9, 2008,
Under the information presented at the conference, the Board has determined that the
Requestor is not be requited to pay the twenty-five thousand dollar ($25,000) deductible for fhis

release. Accordingly, the Department staff decision of August 27, 2008 is reversed.

PaulC. Aughtry 1/

Chairman

Board of Health and Environmental Controt
For the Board

November 2 , 2008

SCBHEC FRC 17-RFR-12 Keenan Qil 7 of 119



Notice of Right to Request Contested Case Hearing Before Adminisirative Law Court
S.C. Code §44-1-60(F)(2) provides that within thirty days after the receipt of the Board’s
written final agency decision an applicant, permittee, licensee, or affected person desiring to
contest the final agency decision may request a contested case hearing before the Administrative
Law Court, in accordance with the Administrative Procedures Act. A request for a contested
case hearing before the Administrative Law Court (ALC) must be filed in accordance with the
Rules of the ALC, including payment of the ALC’s filing fee, at the following address:
Clerk’s Office
South Carolina Administrative Law Court
Edgar A. Brown Building
1205 Pendleton St., Suite 224
Columbia, SC 29201
The ALC’s Notice of Request for Contested Case Hearing form and the Rules of the
ALC can be found at the ALC’s website: hitpi//www.scalonet. If a party files a request for a
contested case hearing with the ALC, the party must serve a copy of the request on DHEC and
any other parties at the same time the request is filed with the ALC. A copy of the reguest for a
contested case hearing must be delivered or mailed to DHEC at the following address:
Lisa L. Longshore
Clerk of the Bosard
SCDHEC
2600 Bull Street
Columbia, SC 29201
The above information on filing a request for a contested case hearing before the

Administrative Law Court is provided as a courtesy; parties before the ALC are responsible for

complying with all applicable requirements of the Court.

SCBHEC FRC 17-RFR-12 Keenan Oil 8 of 119



Appendix B

SCBHEC FRC 17-RFR-12 Keenan Qil 9 of 119



P, 0, BOX U218 2020 W, BRLTLING, .-
 PHONE G5¢:080

y BHILLIPS ; KEENAN OIL COMPANY, INC. : ) ."I.omc; ';'PLANT. I
li 27RB

COLUMBIA, S. C. 29230

8.C. Department of Health and Envirnmental Control

Bureau of Flnance

2600 Bull Strest

Columbia, 8.C. 29201 March 14, 1989

Re: Annual Registratlon Fee for UST

Per the South Carolina Undgrground Storage Tank Control regulations R. 61—92 7,
please receive the below llst as notlficatlon of tanks no longer in opexation.
In each case the tanks have been removed and disposed of or have been scheduled
for removal prior to December 24, 1988, In only one case the equlpment has:.’
remalned in the ground.per the request of property owner. ,

Permit ID - Invoice Number Total Fees if
N-32-NO-06025 0103210-2 60.00
New South Supply ' ' o
N-32-NO-06015 QI03209-4 : 60.00
New South Supply

- N-40-NO-09834 Q103222-7 60.00 i
South Carolina Tractor . ?
N-40-NO-07927 QIro3z2z1-9 120,00
South Carolina Tractor
N-40-NO-07691 ‘ Qro3230-0 60,00

Walker Plumbing Co. (550 gal. tank filled with sand)

N-40-NO-07850 Q103219-3 60.00
Smith Grading & Paving

N-46-NO-07930 QI03213-6 .. 120000 e
Robinson Holdling Co. %, T

N-32-N0O-06114 . QI103179-9 60.00.
Bryant Heating Co. , '

N-40-NO-07893 ' QI03049-4 . 120.00
Fast Fare #821

N-40-NO-07705 QI03196-3 60.00
Green Electric

N-40-NO-07926 ) Q103223-5 120.00
8ox & Freeman

N-40-NO-07693 ) QI03181-5 60.00
Capltal City Dodge

N-40-NO-09308 QI03242-5 60,00

SCBHEC FRC 17-RFR-12 Keenan Qil 10 of 119



Caplital city Dodge

N-40-NO-07873
Hewltt Robins Company

N-40-NO-07707
Kaminer Heatlng Co.

N~32-NO-06136
John E. Fitts

N—-40-NO~07901
W.F, Ballentine

N-40-NG-07630

Westslde Ice & Fuel Co.
N-40-NO-07877
Industrial Alignment

N-40-NO-07810
Pulliam Motor Co,.

N-40-NO-07695
ﬁam Johes 66

N—-40-NO-07855

Goodlelt Equipment Co., Inc.

N-40-NO-07854
Alsxander, Taylor & Murphy

N-40-NO-07899
Aly Products & Chemical

N-32-NQ-06115
Blanchard Machinery Co,

N—-40-NO-07904
Brawley'!s Service Statiop

N—-40-NC-07699
Campbell’s 66

N-40-N0-07931
E.D. Sauls

N-40-NO-07903
Cricket Balt Shop

N-40-N0o-07928
SCE&G

N-32-No-06118

0103197-1
Q103203~7
0103201-1
0103228-4
01032326
QI03199-7
Q103212-8
Q103214-4
0103195-5
QI03173-2
QI03172-4
QI103176-5
QI103178-1
Q103180-7
QI103187-2
RI03186-4
Q103217-7

pIro3z225-0

60.00
60,00
60.00
60.00
60. 00
60.00
120. 00
180.00

60,00
160,00
§0.00
180,00
160.00
360.00
60.00
120,00
50.00

360,00

SCBHEC FRC 17-RFR-12 Keenan Oil 11 of 119



Sunset 6é

N~-40-NO-07883 Qro3204-5 120,00
Keenan 011 Co. ;
N-40-NO-07708 Qro3zil-o IGO.OO

Palmetto Wholesale Co.

[ N-40-NO-07882 QI103184-9

\Sglumbia CKEWIer‘EEfEL._f’—*~“’”——___““
N-40-NO-07706 QI03202-3 60.00
Jones Garbage Service .

Kline Iron and Steel ) EE T
Listed below are tanks billed 1ln error:

N-40~-NO-07766 Q103208-6 120,00 ’
McCrory Const. Co. (Keenan 04l does not own any tanks at this location)

-
N-40-NO-073900 QI03174-0 60,00
B&W Lumber Co. (Tank 1s owned by B&W and DHEC has billed them)

N-40-NO-07692 QI03224-3 60.00
Spring valley Country Club { This is 5 heating 01l tank ) o

Listed below are tanks once owned by Keenan 0il but have been sold (a copy of
blll of sales 1s attached}:

N-32-NO-06117 Qrozige~o 120.00
E.F, Aughtry 66

N-40-NO-07896 : Qro3175-7 : 60,00
Bert A. Brantley

N-40-NO-07876 Qro03206-0 60.00
Lumber Builder & Supply

N-40-NO-07898 . QI103233-4 120,00
william Boyles

N-32-NO-06123 ' Qr03234-2 60.00
Wilson Construction Co.

Please remove all the above equipment from the annual reglstration fee charge
for reasons so outlined,

If there are any questions please don't hesitate calling.
8incerely;

william J. Keenan, 11,

SCBHEC FRC 17-RFR-12 Keenan Qil 12 of 119



Appendix C

SCBHEC FRC 17-RFR-12 Keenan Qil 13 of 119



?’dhec

Healthy Paople. Healthy Communities,

January 24, 2017

Keenan Oil Co., Inc.
PO Box 3218
Columbia, SC 29230-3218

Re: Underground Storage Tank (UST) Permit — 07705
Green Electric Co., 2248 Sumter St., Columbia, SC
Report received — December 2, 2016

Dear Sir or Madam:

An assessment report received by the UST Management Division on Degember 2, 20186,
indicates that groundwater collected from a temporary monitoring well at this location is
contaminated with petroleum constituents. A file review indicates Keenan Qil Co., Inc. as the
tank owner at the time of tank removal and therefore, the responsible party for the petroleum
contamination documented in the Phase Il assessment. The State Underground Petroleum
Environmental Response Bank (SUPERB) Account provides financial assistance for the
cleanup of a site contaminated by a release from a regulated UST system provided that the
facility associated with the release mests certain eligibility criteria. The Division has defermined
that this release Is eligible for cleanup using SUPERB funds. The responsible party must satisfy
a $25,000.00 deductible prior to the Division using SUPERB funds.

The SUPERB Act Section 44-2-130(E)(1) states: “An owner or operator of an underground
storage tank or his agent seeking to qualify for compensation from the Superb Account for site
rehabilitation shall submit a written application to the department.” For your convenisnce, a
SUPERB Account Application/Statement of Insurance form is enclosed. Please complete and
return the attached form. You must request access to the SUPERB Account in order far the
Division to complete the SUPERB qualification process.

South Carolina UST Control Regulation 61-92, Section 280.93(a) and 280.113 of the South
Carolina Underground Storage Tank Control Regulations requires that tank owners submit and
maintain proof of financial responsibility (FR) until subsequent corrective action is compiete.

Should you have any questions pertaining fo this matter, please contact me at (803) 898-0647.

Respectfully, ,D ' ?
M_Q WL Q@ £

Denise M. Place

Regutatory Compliance Section

UST Management Division

Bureau of Land and Waste Management

Enclosure

S.C. Department of Health and Environmental Control
2600 Bull Street, Columbla, SC 29201 (802} 836-3432 wiywscdhec.gay

SCBHEC FRC 17-RFR-12 Keenan Oil 14 of 119




o 1 Superb Account Application
-dhec 1 : Ust Management Division

Pursuant to the State Underground Pefroleum Environmental Responéé Bank (SU?ERB) Act 44-2-1 S'd(é)(‘i)} “An o}'m;ner
or operator of an underground storage tank or his agent seeking to qualify for compensation-from the SUPERB Account
for site rehabilitation shall submit a written application fo the department.” : - . '

Permit #: I ‘Facility Name:
Facility Address: : ' - s
Owner Name;  _
Owner Address; '
Owner Phone #:

For the following section, circle YES or NO: : ¥
YES or NO | request compensation from the SUPERB Account for the release discovered/roported on

You/your company must satisfy a $25,000.00 deductible prior to the Division using SUPERB funds (Pursuant lo the
SUBERB Act 44-2-130). According to department records, you/your company had as your
financial responsibility mechanism at the time the reloase was reported. If this information is Inaccurate, please correct it
by checking the appropriate mechanism below:

{1 Letter of Credit O Insurance Policy 1 Self-insurance {1 Surety Bond 0 Guarantee
INSURANGCE STATEMENT

This site is potentially eligible to receive state monies to assist in site rehabilitation, Before eligibility for the SUPERB funds

can be determined, written confirmation of the existence or non-existence of an environmental insurance policy for this site

is required. Please circle YES or NO with regard to the following:

Is there now, or has there ever been an insurance policy or other financial mechanism that covers this UST release?
YES or NO

My policy provider is

The policy number is

The policy deductible is Policy limit:

If you have this type of insurance, please include a copy of the policy with this report.

Owner Signature: Sworn before me this day
Print Signatory Name: of ., 20
Date:

Notary Public {Signature)

for the State of
(if other than South Caralina, affix seal)

SGHDEC, UST Managament Division, 2600 Bull Streat, Columbia, SC 26201, PHONE (803) 898-0589, FAX (803) 898-0673, www.sedhac.goviust

DHEC 1300 (16/2014) SOUTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL

SCBHEC FRC 17-RFR-12 Keenan Oil 15 of 119




BEFORE THE SOUTH CAROLINA BOARD OF HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL

STAFF RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR FINAL REVIEW
Docket No. 17-RFR-12

Requestor/Permittee:  Keenan Energy Group, f/k/a Keenan Oil Co.,

RE:

I.

UST Site ID #07705 (Green Electric Co., 2248 Sumter Street, Columbia, SC)

Requirement of Payment of deductible before access to SUPERB funds.

SUMMARY
a) Type of Decision

This request for review challenges a January 24, 2017 decision by DHEC’s Bureau of Land
and Waste Management, Underground Storage Tank Management Division (Division or
DHEC or Department) that Keenan Oil Co., Inc. must satisfy a deductible prior to using
SUPERB funds.

Department records indicate that Keenan Oil Co., Inc. (Keenan Oil) was the owner of and
removed one 1,000 gallon gasoline underground storage tank (UST) from the Green Electric
Co. Site (Site) on or before December 24, 1988. Keenan Oil submitted a letter to the
Department, dated March 14, 1989 (1989 Tank Fee Notification). Keenan Qil did not report
any releases in its 1989 Tank Fee Notification. The notification from Keenan Oil listed
several sites, including the Green Electric Site, with tanks no longer in operation. Division
files do not indicate that a release was reported at the time the referenced UST was removed
or at any time by Keenan Oil for this Site. Therefore, on January 24, 2017 the Division
confirmed a release from the former gasoline UST located at the Green Electric Site.

The 1988 SUPERB Act offered an early detection incentive program, wherein a person who
made a written report of a release during the statutory amnesty period would not be required
to satisfy a deductible under SUPERB. Keenan Oil made reports for releases at other sites
during the amnesty period, but did not report a release at the Green Electric Site.

As the tank owner at the time of tank removal, Keenan Qil is responsible for site rehabilitation
of this release. The release is qualified for State Underground Petroleum Environmental
Response Bank (SUPERB) funding however, since the release was not reported by June 30,
1993, Keenan Oil must satisfy a $25,000 deductible prior to accessing SUPERB funds toward
cleanup of the release as set forth under the SUPERB Act.

b) Parties and Other Relevant Names

Requestor, Keenan Oil Co., Inc., owner of the underground storage tank formerly located at
2248 Sumter Street, Columbia, S.C.

ARM Environmental Services, Inc., contractor for another party unrelated to Keenan Oil,
who was issued a permit on November 8, 2016 to install three temporary monitoring wells on

1

SCBHEC FRC 17-RFR-12 Keenan Qil 16 of 119



the property at 2248 Sumter Street, Columbia, S.C., which resulted in the detection of a
petroleum release at the Green Electric Site.

¢) Location: UST Site ID# 07705, Green Electric Co., 2248 Sumter Street, Columbia, S.C.

d) Relevant Chronology

May 2, 1988 -

> In 1988, South Carolina cnacted the State Underground Petroleum Environmental
Response Bank (SUPERB) Act, S.C. Code § 44-2-10 et seq. The 1988 SUPERB Act
established an incentive program “to encourage early detection, reporting, and cleanup of
releases from leaking petroleum storage tanks.” S.C. Code § 44-2-110 (1988).

March 14, 1989 —

> 1989 Tank Fee Notification. Keenan Oil submitted a letter to the Department reporting the
removal of USTs from a list of sites, including the Green Electric Site. Keenan Oil did not
report any releases in this letter.

June 30, 1993 —

» Amnesty Period Ends (midnight deadline to make a written report of a release to the
Department. The end date for the amnesty period was extended several times, but finally
ended at midnight on June 30, 1993. See 1992 Act No. 501, Part II, Section 43F).

December 2, 2016 —

» The Division received a phase IT assessment report that indicated the existence of a
petroleum release at the Site, with levels of petroleum constituents that exceeded the risk
based screening levels in groundwater samples collected from temporary monitoring wells
on the Site.

January 24, 2017 -
» The Division confirmed a release from the former gasoline UST located at the Green

Electric Site. Specific petroleum additives documented in the phase II assessment report
samples are consistent with gasoline production around 1988.
» The Division determined that the release was eligible for cleanup using SUPERB funds.
» The Division sent Keenan Oil a letter, that as the tank owner, Keenan Oil must satisfy a
$25,000.00 deductible prior to the Division using SUPERB funds.

II. RELEVANT LAW

a) S.C.Code § 44-2-110 (1988).

SCBHEC FRC 17-RFR-12 Keenan Oil 17 of 119



The 1988 SUPERB Act established a general grace period (amnesty) “beginning on January
1, 1988 and ending on December 31, 1989, for reporting petroleum releases from
underground storage tanks (USTs). S.C. Code § 44-2-110 (1988).

Pursuant thereto, the department shall establish reasonable requirements for the
written reporting of petroleum releases and distribute the forms ... to be used for
the purpose of reporting petroleum releases. Until the forms are available for
distribution, the department shall take reports of these releases however made but
shall notify any person making a report that a written report of the release will be
required by the department at a later time, the form for which will be provided by
the department. All sites involving releases from underground storage tanks
reported to the department any time from midnight on December 31, 1987, to
midnight on December 31, 1989, regardless of whether the release occurred before
or after January 1, 1988, are qualified sites for the expenditure of funds from the
Superb Account, provided that a written report is filed with respect thereto. ...

S.C. Code § 44-2-110 (1988). (emphasis added).

b) S.C.Code §44-2-130(A) (1988).

The 1988 SUPERB Act also established that the amount of site rehabilitation costs from the
SUPERB Account was dependent upon when the release was reported to the department, as
provided under § 44-2-110.

To encourage voluntary rehabilitation, a person conducting site rehabilitation under
Section 44-2-110, which defines the early detection incentive program... is entitled
to...be reimbursed from the Superb Account for reasonable costs incurred in
connection with the site rehabilitation if prior approval therefor is obtained from
the department. Prior to or during the grace period established under the early
detection incentive program, the person is eligible ... for all reasonable costs
incurred in connection with site rehabilitation. Subsequent to the grace
period...the person is eligible ... for reasonable costs incurred in excess of one
hundred thousand dollars [“deductible™]...!

S.C. Code §44-2-130(A) (1988). (emphasis added).

¢) 1985 UST Control Regulations, R. 61-92.

The 1985 UST Control Regulations, R. 61-92, preceded the 1988 SUPERB Act.2 These
regulations set forth requirements for abandonment of USTs, including an annual reporting

" In 1990, the deductible amount was lowered from “one hundred thousand dollars™ to “twenty-five thousand
dollars.” See 1990 Act No. 473, Section 7.
* The 1985 UST Control Regulations, R. 61-92, were promulgated pursuant to the South Carolina Pollution Control
Act, 8.C. Code § 48-1-10 et seq, and S.C. Code § 44-55-10 et seq., entitled “Water, Sewage, Waste Disposal and the
Like.” State Register, Vol. 9, Issue 5, May 24, 1985,

3

SCBHEC FRC 17-RFR-12 Keenan Qil 18 of 119



requirement to notify the Department of any USTs abandoned in the past year. The regulations
also required reporting of known UST failures that may have resulted in releases. However,
the statutory requirement to report a release during the amnesty period was different from the
regulatory annual reporting requirement.

1) “The owner or operator of any tank which has been abandoned ... shall notify the

Department in accordance with the annual reporting requirements in Section
R.61-92.7.H.” 61-92.12.C. (1985).

i1) “Beginning January 1987, tank owners or operators must submit a report to the

Department... if they have within the past calendar year: (1) Abandoned a tank...”
61-92.12.C. (1985).

The purpose of the SUPERB Act is to protect citizens’ health, safety, and welfare by creating
aregulatory program to reduce the risk of releases from underground storage tanks and conduct
site rehabilitation activities for petroleum releases from regulated USTs. The SUPERB Act
and the regulations promulgated pursuant to it (S.C. Regs. 61-92, Part 280 and 61-98) set forth
requirements for site rehabilitation for releases from USTs and for accessing funds from the
SUPERB account. S.C. Code § 44-2-50. The law confers upon the Division the regulatory
authority and responsibility to accomplish the purposes of the Act. The S.C. UST Control
Regulations 61-92, Part 280 (2008) and SUPERB R. 61-98, Site Rehabilitation and Fund
Access Regulations (1997), provide the framework in which the Division must operate. All
decisions made by staff must be aligned with these regulations.

III.  STAFF RESPONSE TO GROUNDS IN THE REQUEST FOR REVIEW

a) Keenan Oil contends that it should not have to pay any deductible for the cleanup of the
release at the Green Electric Site, because during the grace period Keenan Qil reported
that it removed a UST from the Green Electric Site.

Keenan Oil submitted a letter to the Department, dated March 14, 1989, with the subject line
“Re: Annual Registration Fee for UST” (1989 Tank Fee Notification). Keenan Oil’s 1989
Tank Fee Notification did not report any releases. The 1989 Tank Fee Notification was
submitted in accordance with the regulatory requirement that tank owners or operators must
annually notify the Department of any tanks abandoned® within the past calendar year. S.C.
Reg. 61-92.7 H. (1985); S.C. Reg. 61-92.12.C. (1985).

In its 1989 Tank Fee Notification, Keenan Oil made the following requests, “[pler the South
Carolina Underground Storage Tank Control regulations R.61-92-7, please receive the below
list as notification of tanks no longer in operation” and “[p]lease remove all the above
equipment from the annual registration fee charge.” The 1989 Tank Fee Notification

indicated that Keenan Oil “removed and disposed of” a tank from the Green Electric Site
prior to December 24, 1988.

? “Abandoned tank” means a tank which has had all regulated substances removed and which is not intended to be
returned to operation. R.61-92.3 A, (1985),

4

SCBHEC FRC 17-RFR-12 Keenan Qil 19 of 119



Keenan Oil submitted the 1989 Tank Fee Notification during the amnesty period. This
notification did not report a release. Notification of tank removal from a Site is not
notification of a release. Keenan Oil did not report any release at the Green Electric Site
during the amnesty period. However, Keenan Qil did report releases at several other sites
during the amnesty period. Keenan Oil reported 13 releases prior to July 1, 1993, mcluding
reporting a release on June 30, 1993, the last day of the amnesty period. (Attachment 1)

In 2016, subsequent to the grace period, the release at the Green Electric Site was reported to
the Department by another party, not Keenan Oil. This release is qualified for SUPERB
funds after the deductible has been paid. Therefore, Keenan Oil is responsible for paying the
deductible prior to accessing SUPERB funds for this Site.

b) Keenan Oil contends it is qualified to receive SUPERB funds to cover all reasonable
costs incurred in connection with site rehabilitation, regardless of when the release
occurred, and is not responsible for any deductible before receiving SUPERB funds,
because Keenan Oil reported the site to the Department during the grace period under
the law existing at the time of tank removal.

The 1988 SUPERB Act was the statute in effect at the time Keenan Oil reported the removal
of the UST from the Site. Section 44-2-110 of the 1988 SUPERB Act stated, “[a]ll sites
involving releases from underground storage tanks reported to the department any time from
midnight on December 31, 1987 to midnight on December 31, 1989, regardless of whether
the release occurred before or after January 1, 1988, are qualified sites for the expenditure of
funds from the SUPERB Account, provided that a written report is filed with respect
thereto.”

Section 44-2-130 of the 1988 SUPERB Act addressed compensation from the SUPERB
account and referred to § 44-2-110 to define the early detection incentive program. Section
44-2-110 required that a release be reported to the Department, not simply a site. Under §
44-2-130(A), a person who reported a release “[p]rior to or during the grace period” would
be eligible for reimbursement of “all reasonable costs ... for site rehabilitation,” up to the
statutory maximum, without having to meet any deductible. However, a person who reported
a release “[s]ubsequent to the grace period” would be eligible for reimbursement of
“reasonable costs ... in excess of” the deductible, up to the statutory maximumn.

The plain language of § 44-2-110 (1988) states multiple times that the subject of what was to
be reported was the “release,” and not the site. In 1995, the Legislature amended the
SUPERB Act to clarify its intent that several sections, including §§ 44-2-110, 44-2-1 30,
applied to releases at a site rather than to sites. See 1995 Act no. 145, Part 11, Section 2E.
Thus both the 1988 SUPERB Act as well as the version current today, as amended in 1995,
require a person to make a “written report of a release” and not only of a site, during the
grace period in order to be eligible for all reasonable costs.

The 1989 Tank Fee Notification did not include any indication or sample results that would
1dentify there was a release at the Site. Keenan Oil did not report a release at the Green

5

SCBHEC FRC 17-RFR-12 Keenan Qil 20 of 119



Electric Site during the amnesty period established in the 1988 SUBPERB Act therefore,
Keenan O1l must be responsible for the $25,000 deductible prior to accessing SUPERB.

c¢) Keenan Oil contends that this 2017 staff decision is in direct conflict with a 2008 DHEC
Board Decision.

A 2008 decision determined in that case that Keenan Oil would not be required to pay the
deductible for a release at the Carolina Tractor and Equipment Site. The 2008 Board
Decision did not make any substantive findings or give any indication as to why it made such
a decision. Determinations involving the SUPERB Account are fact-specific. This Board’s
decision regarding this matter should be determined based upon the facts before it today.

The staff decision at issue today is for a release reported on December 2, 2016. Section 44-
2-110 states “all releases from USTs reported to the department any time from midnight on
December 31, 1987 to midnight on June 30, 1993... are qualified for expenditure of funds
from the SUPERB account, provided that a written report is filed with respect to it.” The
release at issue today was not reported prior to midnight on June 30, 1993.

d) Keenan Qil contends that it removed the UST at the Green Electric Site and made the
required reporting to the Department in accordance with the regulations in effect at the
time of the removal.

The requirement to report a release during the amnesty period was in the 1988 statute, and
not required in the UST regulations in effect when Keenan Oil removed the tank from the
Green Electric Site. The 1985 UST regulations required tank abandonment notification
found in R.61-92.7.H. Keenan Oil notified the Department of tanks removed per the
applicable regulatory requirements, and was therefore no longer subject to the responsibility
for tank fees, providing financial responsibility and maintaining those USTs. However,
Keenan’s 1989 Tank Fee Notification did not report a release at this Site.

REQUESTED ACTION

The Department respectfully requests that the Board deny the Request for Final Review,
thereby upholding the staff determination that the release at the Green Electric Site, reported
on December 2, 2016, qualifies for SUPERB funding, following Keenan Oil’s satisfaction of
the twenty-five thousand dollar deductible required under the SUPERB Act.

Attachments:

Attachment 1 — Keenan Release Report made June 30, 1993
Attachment 2 — Release declaration letter
Attachment 3 — Phase 1I assessment report and memo, received December 2, 2016

6

SCBHEC FRC 17-RFR-12 Keenan Qil 21 of 119



MHec et |

Sotsth Caroling eeeemmes Comemissiones: Michael D. Jamwit
D | Board:  John B. Pats, MD, Chalrman Toney Graham, Jr, MD -
: . E : ( j Witiam E. Applogats, i, Vice Chizkman Richard E. Jabbour, DOS
Departrmiact of Health and Enviconmontal Contred <ot H. (BUNTESS, SOSwar m%%f
2600 Buil Street, Columbia, SG 28201 Promoting Hoalth, Protecting the Envionment
S.C. UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANKS
T P

TODAY’S DATE: £/29/31
REPORTED BY: ViKt ke " Tad. ~ET€ Jiv.S, 0% PHONE: FI Feg e

(print)

ADDRESS: 1343 prre Al cpuileh okl

LEY ARTew' | ve A% 07d

+

PHONE: 256 ~cCél 7

OWNER NAME: Ko din cit (0.

FACILITY NAME: Eav &halve L€ '
A.DDRESSS ) /";bnl:é-{y"v fi,a,.( - ’ -
(..d‘l.*/é’f:-rg- ’id ] ,S» {
- ST
S.C. UST REGISTRATION #: CFES 7

DATE DISCOVERED: __£/23/4%

HOW DISCOVERED: __£#44c¢ ART sy AaRlpsss
TYPE OF PRODUCT RELEASED: ___~__¢--dsue pies
HOW RELEASE OCCURRED:

fz f’i’.fq«j e ‘{j/); . UNr ,S',} b r{‘*"i ¢

INITIAL CLEAN-UP MEASURES TAKEN:

o 3 ;7 ; s
VAl gy sk JP € s b Ay cleied ‘
P }” ;

SIGNATURE OF PERSON COMPLETING FORM: __/

Be sure to notify all other relcgant parties
(Le., Facility Owner, Adjacent Property Owners, EPA, Fire Department, Etc.)
and to follow the directives of Subpart E of the S.C. Undergrounds@gmgem {7eRERL I2cKeéman®il 22 of L19



AHacetivent & 7

WWdhec

Healthy People Healthy Communities

January 24, 2017

Keenan Oil Co., Inc.
PO Box 3218
Columbia, SC 29230-3218

Re:  Underground Storage Tank (UST) Permit - 07705
Green Electric Co., 2248 Sumter St., Columbia, SC
Report received - December 2, 2016

Dear Sir or Madam:

An assessment report received by the UST Management Division on December 2, 2016,
indicates that groundwater collected from a temporary monitoring well at this location is
contaminated with petroleum constituents. A file review indicates Keenan Oil Co., Inc. as the
tank owner at the time of tank removal and therefore, the responsible party for the petroleum
contamination documented in the Phase Il assessment. The State Underground Petroleum
Environmental Response Bank (SUPERB) Account provides financial assistance for the
cleanup of a site contaminated by a release from a regulated UST system provided that the
facility associated with the release meets certain eligibility criteria. The Division has determined
that this release is eligible for cleanup using SUPERB funds. The responsible party must satisfy
a $25,000.00 deductible prior to the Division using SUPERB funds.

The SUPERB Act Section 44-2-130(E)(1) states: “An owner or operator of an underground
storage tank or his agent seeking to qualify for compensation from the Superb Account for site
rehabilitation shall submit a written application to the department.” For your convenience, a
SUPERB Account Application/Statement of insurance form is enclosed. Please complete and
return the attached form. You must request access to the SUPERB Account in order for the
Division to complete the SUPERB qualification process.

South Carolina UST Control Regulation 61-92, Section 280.93(a) and 280.113 of the South
Carolina Underground Storage Tank Control Regulations requires that tank owners submit and
maintain proof of financial responsibility (FR) until subsequent corrective action is complete.

Should you have any questions pertaining to this matter, please contact me at (803) 898-0647.

Respectiully, 7 5
VtnAp L QQ:Q
Denise M. Place ~ ‘
Regulatory Compliance Section

UST Management Division

Bureau of Land and Waste Management

Enclosure

S C. Department of Health and Environmental Control

" SCBHEC FRC 17-RFR-12 Keenan Oil 23 of 119

| I et JP PN PPN 2



Q & Superb Account Application
\thec Ust Management Division

Pursuant to the State Underground Petroleum Environmental Response Bank (SUPERB) Act 44-2-130(E)(1): “An owner
or operator of an underground storage tank or his agent seeking to qualify for compensation from the SUPERB Account
for site rehabilitation shall submit a written application to the department.”

Permit #: Facility Name:
Facility Address:
Owner Name:

Owner Address:
Owner Phone #:

For the following section, circle YES or NO:
YES or NO | request compensation from the SUPERB Account for the release discovered/reported on

You/your company must satisfy a $25,000.00 deductible prior to the Division using SUPERB funds (Pursuant to the
SUBERB Act 44-2-130). According to department records, you/your company had as your
financial responsibility mechanism at the time the release was reported. If this information is inaccurate, please correct it
by checking the appropriate mechanism below:

O Letter of Credit 0O Insurance Policy O Selfdnsurance O Sursty Bond O Guarantee
INSURANCE STATEMENT

This site is potentially eligible to receive state monies lo assist in site rehabilitation. Before eligibility for the SUPERB funds

can be determined, written confirmation of the existence or non-existence of an environmental insurance policy for this site

is required. Please circle YES or NO with regard to the following:

Is there now, or has there ever been an insurance policy or other financial mechanism that covers this UST release?
YES or NO

My policy provider is

The policy number is
The policy deductible is

Policy limit:

If you have this type of insurance, please include a copy of the policy with this report.

Owner Signature: Sworn before me this day
Print Signatory Name; of .20
Date:

Notary Public {Signature)

for the State of

(if other than South Carolina, affix seal)

SCHDEC, UST Management Divison, 2600 Bull Streel, Columbia, SC 29201, PHONE (803) 898-0589, FAX (803) 898-0673, www scdhec.gov/ust

CEECHE00{IS/Z0Ns) SOUTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL
SCBHEC FRC 17-RFR-12 Keenan Qil 24 of 119




AHmewUﬂ}

NPdhec

Healthy People Healthy Communities,

MEMORANDUM

To: Chris Doll, P.G., Section Manager
Assessment Section
UST Management Division, BLWM

From: Denise M. Place Dé?
Regulatory Compliance Section
UST Management Division, BLWM

Through: Eric Cathcart, Section Manageré"
Regulatory Compliance Section
UST Management Division, BLWM

Date: January 23, 2017

Re: UST Permit — 07705
Green Electric Co., 2248 Sumter St., Columbia, SC
Release reported - December 2, 2016

Our records indicate that one gasoline UST was owned by Keenan Oil Co., Inc. at the
referenced location. The UST is listed as removed from the ground but the Division has no
record of having received a closure report and does not have a removal date. No additional
information exists and the file has been purged.

The Division received a Phase |l assessment report on December 2, 2016 indicating that
petroleum constituents exceed RBSL's for groundwater collected from a temporary monitoring
well on site.

No previous releases have been reported for this location and there are no known offsite
sources. Therefore, a release has been entered with Keenan Oil Co., Inc. as the responsible

party.

Due to the lack of compliance history for this facility, a Substantial Compliance Worksheet will
not be completed. The Division will favor eligibility and find this release in substantial
compliance.

S.C. Department of Health and Environmentat Control

" "SCBHEC FRC 17-RFR-12 Keenan Oil 25 of 119

[ SRt i W Y 2_



Site Name/ID# __Qw 7 e "Ll"lf <O:L7_DS_‘
Release # For UST# Release Report Date 122~

County @_{(L\ b nd

Free Product Reported? Yes/No  Impacted water supply well reported? Yes/No
Receptor w/in 1000 fect of UST system? (Well, Surface water body, wetland, other)

Triage (Indicate type of submittal)

CR
AR

RBSL RBS1,
Worst Case Sample  (mg/kg) (ug/kg) Soil # (ug/l)  Water (ug/)4
Benzene 007 7 5 s
Toluene 1.45 1450 1000 D
Ethylbenzene 1.15 mso 700 o
Xylenes 14.5 1450 000
Naphthalene (8260) .036 36 . 25 I |
Naphthalene (8270) .036 ¥ 25 ——i
PAH’s i
Benzo(a)anthracene .66 660 ___,_4-___
Benzo(b){louranthene .66 660
Benzo(k)flouranthene .66 660 _ Y S
Chrysene .66 660 B
Dibenz(a,hyanthracene.66 060 - o
Other
MTBE (water only) 40 S
1,2-DCA 5 5
EDB 05 _
Other

POTENTIAL SC DENIAL? YES / NO

1. ANl USTs Registered? €es PNo / NA g

2. All Applicable Annual Fees Paid? Yes / No @

3. Financial Responsibility Mechanism verified?

4. Insurance Stalement Requested? Yes / No/NA

5. UST Status (account for all USTs in database)

USTs Permanently Closed Date Closed

__USTs CIU & Passed TT'  Date Tested .

6. RP — Owner signature? Yes / No e,

7. Site Map Requested? Yes/No Rcceived‘.%s‘; No

8. AST's present? Yes/No

Yes No

NFA?
Manager Approval_

Last Used Date
Date Repaired

SCBHEC FRC 17-R

es /No/ NA Type __ Vv
Received? YesNo

maa

FR-12

: i ﬁeenan Oil 26 of 119

b0 Mankat



N - Placo, Deni o o=
12/2/2016 Fw: 2244 Sumter Stroot - Place, Denise O 10

Fw: 2244 Sumter Street

Mcinnis, Jonathan

Fri 1272020016 12:29 Aka

T Place, Danise <placedm@ahec.sc.govs;

Site Plan and Lab Data.pdf;

Your #7705 | believe. Can someone give Andy feedback on these results? | can tell you the 1,2-DCA detection
would only make the site our lowest priority here and likely we would not open any investigation. Thanks!

Jonathan

Jonathan G. Mcinnis, Program Manager
Federal & State Site Assessment Section
Division of Site Assessment, Remediation, and Revitalization
Bureau of Land & VWaste Management

S.C. Dept. of Heaith & Environmental Control
2600 Bull Street

Columbia, SC 29201

Office: (803) 898-0802

Fax: (803) 898-1297

mecinnijg@dhec, sc.gov

Connect: www.scdhec.gov Facebook Twitter

‘\C"@dhec

[T LT S 1 LIRS

From: Andy Wilson <awilson@armenv.com>
Sent: friday, December 2, 2016 10:04 AM
To: Mcinnis, lonathan

Cc: Michele Mcleod

Subject: 2244 Sumter Street

Good morning. Attached is information on a recent Phase |l that we have completed. The site is the former location of
Green Electric Company. According to regulatory data we evaluated during a Phase |, this site had a 1,000 gallon UST that
was removed in 1991. The property is currently owned by First Citizens Bank (Raleigh, NC) through foreclosure.

We represent the potential buyer and we have recommended that we get y ‘all's decision regarding any additional work that
may be required. | will get you the 1903 forms early next week. Meanwhile, please evaluate this data and let us know your

opinion. Thanks,

Andrew M, Wilson, P.G,
ARM Environmental Services, {nc. SCBHEC FRC 17-RFR-12 Keenan Qil 27 of 119

hhine v dlenk ARea RS ~nm inaraiPuiswmandal=Raadbdsce anallam & teen 1M = A AM L AT RRY TR UWR 7] TZ IRt RV INWIE? m i 14) WRuZi7kZmRm 7mE37 AR n



124212018 Fw: 2244 Sumter Strest - Place, Denise

1210 First Street South
Columbia, SC 29209
awilson@ammenv.com
ph: 803 783-3314

cell: 803 269-3908

SCBHEC FRC 17-RFR-12 Keenan Qil 28 of 119
httos:n‘n'ouliook.ofhceas&commmiwmodel=ReadMessauailem&Hsm|D=MMkAthYTcBOWMzLTZlMiutNGYBNvOSZm UAWEVZIZKZMRmMZmEIZABRG. . 27



AHdchonerst 2z

SHEALY ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES, INC.

Report of Analysis

ARM Environmental Services, Inc.
1210 1st Street S. Ext.
Columbia, SC 29209

Attention: Michael Faris

Project Name: 2244 Sumter St
Project Number:08-281-16

Lot Number:RK21011
Date Completed:11/28/2016

O

Lucas Odom
Praoject Manager

BORATORY
H& A CREDIT.WHON
RERE ] “-l
ACCHEDJ TED.BM.: 1oas

This repott shall not be reproduced, oxceptin s entirety, without the written approval of Shealy Environmental Services, Inc.

The fallowing nan-paginated documents are considered part of this repon: Chain of Custody Record and Sample Reoeipt Checklist.

Shasty Environmental Senices, !ne, Page: 1 of 15
106 Venlage Poinl Drive  West Colimbls, 3G 79177 (A03) 781-9700  Fax (03] 791-9111  wnvarshaalylub.com

SCBHEC FRC 17-RFR-12 Keenan Oil 29 of 119



SHEALY ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES, INC.

SC DHEC No: 32019 NELAGC No: E87653 NC DENR No: 329 NG Frold Paramuters No: 5639

Case Narrative

ARM Environmental Services, Inc.
Lot Number: RK21011

This Repor of Analysis contains the analytical resul(s) for the sample(s) listed on tho Sample Summary following this Case Narrative. The sample
recowving gate is documented n e header infermation associated with gach sample,

Al resulls 'sted i this report refate anty to the samplos that are contained within this repon.

Sample receipt, sample analysis, and data review have been parformed in accordance with the most current approved NELAC standards, the
Shenty Environmentsl Services, Ing. ("Shealy”} Quality Assurance Managemant Plan {QAMP), standard operatng procedures (SOPs), and Shealy
pelic’es. Any exceptions to the NELAC standards, the QAMP, SOPs or policies are qualified on the results page or discussed halow,

If you heve any questions regarding this report please contact the Shealy Preject Manager fisied on the cover page.

Shealy Envirshmental Services, Inc. Page: 2 of 15

106 Varlage Poini Dve  Wes) Cotmblg, SC 20172 (803) 791-97C0  Fax [BO3) 791-9111  werw.shanlylab. oo

SCBHEC FRC 17-RFR-12 Keenan Qil 30 of 119



SHEALY ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES, INC.

Sample Summary
ARM Environmental Services, Inc.
Lot Number; RK21011

Sample Number  Sample ID

Matrlx Date Sampled  Date Recaived
001 TMN-1 Aqueous 11718/2016 1530 110212016
002 TW-2 AGUEDUS 1111812016 4600 1112142046
o3 TMW-3 Agueous 19/18/2016 1700 1421/2016
(3 samples)

Shesty Environmental Sendicas, Inc.
106 Vamage Pelal Deve  West Golunbla, SC 29172

(803) 791-6700  Fox (803) 791-9111  www.shealylab.com

Page: 3 of 15

SCBHEC FRC 17-RFR-12 Keenan Qil 31 of 119



SHEALY ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES, INC.

Executive Summary

ARM Environmental Services, Inc.
Lot Number: RK21011

Sample Samplo ID Matrlx _Parameter Method Result Q Units Page
001 Thivw Aqueous Benzene 82608 180 ugll. 5
001 T Aqueous 1,2-Dichloroethsne 82608 8.5 ugil. §
001 TRV Aqueous kethyl tertizry butyl ether 82608 i ugfl L
002 TMW-2 Aqueous Benzene 82608 10 ugi. 7
002 ThMW-2 Aqueous Chloreform 82608 8.0 ugll 7

{5 dotections)

Shealy Envinonmontal Services, Ine, Page: 4 of 15
106 Wanlage Point Drive  \West Columbiz, SC 20172 (803} 761-0700  Fax (803} 7919111  wavw.shosldab.com

SCBHEC FRC 17-RFR-12 Keenan Qil 32 of 119



Lahoratory ID: RK2101-001
Matrix: Aqueous

Ctient; ARM Environmental Services, Inc.
Cescription: TMW.-1
Date Sampled:11/18/12016 1530
| Date Received:11/21/2016

Volatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS

Run Prep Method Analytical Method Dilution Analysis Date Analyst Prep Date Batch
1 50308 B260B 1 1172812016 1157 TML 27802
CAS Analytical

Parameter Number Mathod Result Q PQL Unlts Run
Acolong 67-64-1 82608 ND 20 ugh. 1
Henzane 71-43-2 82508 180 5.0 ugll k|
Bromadichloromethane 75-27+4 82608 ND 540 ugl. 1
Bromolorm 75.28-2 82608 ND 5.0 ugll 1
Bromomethans (Methyl oromids) 74-83-9 82608 ND 5.0 ugh, 1
2-Butanona (MEK) 78.93.3 B260B ND i0 ugh 1
Caurbon disulfids 7515:0 82608 ND 5.0 uglt i
Catbon tetrachioride 56-23-5 82608 ND 5.0 ugfl 3
Chicrobenzene 108-90-7 8260B ND 5.0 uglL 1
Chicroethane 75.00-3 8260R ND 50 ug/l 1
Chicroform 87-66-3 82608 ND 5.0 ugil 1
Chiorormsthzra {Methyl chloride) 74-87-3 B2B0B WD 5.0 ugil. 1
Cyclohexane ©10-82-7 82608 NG 50 ugil 1
1,2-Dibrome-3-chicroprapane [DBCP) 86-12-8 82600 ND 5.0 ugil 1
Dibromochioromettans 124-48-1 B26CR ND 5.0 ug/l 1
1,2-Ditromasinane (EDB) 10E-93-4 8260B N 5.0 wgll 1
1.2-Dichlorobenzene 95-50-1 82600 ND 5.0 eofl 1
1.3-Dichlcrobenzens 541-73-1 82608 ND 5.0 ug/l 1
1.4-Dichicrobenzene 106-46-7 82608 ND 5.0 ugh 1
Dichicrodifluoromethane 75-71-8 82608 ND 5.0 ugiL 1
1.1-Dichlorosthane 75-34-3 82608 ND 50 ugfl 4
1,2-Bichioroethane 107-06-2 82608 8.5 5.0 ugiL 1
1,1-Dichlgroathena 75-35.4 82608 ND 5.0 ugit 1
cis-1,2-Dichloroothone 155-58-2 82608 ND 50 ugh, 1
trong-1,2-Dichlorosthane 156-80-6 82608 ND 50 ughl 1
1,2-Clchloropropana 78-87-5 82608 ND 5.0 ugil 1
cis-1,3-Dichloroprapere 16081-01-5 B260B ND 5.0 upll 1
trans-1,3-Dighloropropane 10061-02-6 82608 ND 5.0 gl 1
Ethylbenzene 100-4 54 82608 ND 50 ughl. 4
2-Hexanono 591-78-6 82608 ND 10 ugl 3
Isopropylbenzene 98-82-8 82608 ND 5.0 ugdl. 3

Meihyt acetate 79-20-9 82608 ND 50 ugll 1
Mathyl tertiary buty! other (MTBE]) 1834-04-4 g2808B 1 5.0 ug/L 1
4-Methyl-2-pantanone 108-10-1 8260B ND 10 ugll 1
Meathyicyclohexane 108-87-2 82608 ND 5.0 ugil. 1
Methylone chioride 75-08-2 B260B NOY 5.0 ugsL 1
Styrene 100-42-5 82808 ND 5.0 ugfl. 1
1.1,2.2-Totrachloroethano 79-34-5 8260B N 5.0 ugfL 1
Tetrachloroathene 127-18-4 82608 ND 5.0 ug/L 1
Toluens 108-88-3 82600 ND 5.0 ugfl. 1

PLL = Pracics’ quanutation Tk B « Detected in the melhod bank E=cC lzr ©f compound axs tha cditratian range M = 013 of hedding mn

MD = Nt doteziag t or abave e PRI 4 3 ESengton essall < PQL and + MOL P = Fhe RPD betasur two GC columns uxceads 49% N = Rucovary i out of criteria

‘Ahere ppatania, all sall sample anztysis soe repcriad o1 & dry walghi BRES unless Nagysd with 3 "\

Page: 5 of 15

Shegly Enronritenlal Sesviees, Ing.
106 Vaniage Point Drive  \West Calumbla, ST 28472  {803) 751-8700 Frx (A03) 79153231 wawashaalylab.com

SCBHEC FRC 17-RFR-12 Keenan Qil 33 of 119



l.aboratory ID:RK21011.001

Client: ARM Environmental Services, Inc.
Malrix: Aqueous

Descrplicn: TMW-4
Date Sampled; 1114872016 4530
Date Received:; 11/2112016

Volatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS

Run Prep Methaod Analytical Method Dilution  Analysis Date Anmalyst  Prep Date Bateh
1 50308 82608 ! 14/26/2016 1157 TML 27802
CAS Analytical
Parameter Number Methed Rosult Q POL Units Run
1,1,2-Trichloro-1,2,2-Triflusroethane 76-13-1 82608 ND 5.0 ugl 1
1.2,4-Trlchlorobenzeno 120-82-1 82608 ND 50 ugiL 1
1,1, 1-Frichioroelhans 71-55-8 82608 ND 5.0 ugfl. 1
1.1,2-Trichioroethane 79-00-5 82608 ND 5.0 ugl 1
Trichloroethoens 79-01-6 82608 ND 5.0 ugik 1
Trichlorofluoromethane 75-69-4 82608 ND 5.0 ugil 1
Vinyl chloride 75-01-4% 82608 ND 2.6 ugll 1
Xyenes {total) 1330.20.7 8260B WD 5.0 ugll 1
Run1 Acceptance

Surrogate Q % Recovery Limits

1.2-Dichloraothane-d4 83 70-130

Bromofluorobenzens 98 70-130

Toluene-dg 102 70-130
201 = Prackics! guanilgton g B = Dscted in the mathed Hynh E = Quantialkion of tompound exceadad Cie calbeallun rorge  H < Ot of holding tme
ND = Kal éalectad at or ahava tha FOL A = Eslinuitad rasust < POl ang 2 WDI, F = The RPD BOrwear mwo G5 calmng excagrs 40% H = Recevary & out ol ooy
wrar appicsla, all sail sampla 2nalysls ate meported oo a dry st D315 U555 H3gRod with a v

Page: 6ol 15

Shealy Envionmentzs Sorvices, Ind.
108 Vaniage Foint Drive  West Columbia, SC 20172 (804} 791-970%  Fax (804) 761-9111  www.shenlflab.cam

SCBHEC FRC 17-RFR-12 Keenan Qil 34 of 119



Laboratory I0: RK21011.002
Matrix: Aqueous

Clienl: ARM Environmental Services, Inc,
Description: TMW.2
Data Sampled:11/48/2016 1600
Dals Raceivod: 11/21/2016

Volatlle Organic Compounds by GC/MS

Run Prep Method Analytical Method Dilutlon  Analysis Date Analystl  Prep Date Batch
1 50308 82608 3 11126/20161221 TML 27802
CAS Analytical

Parameater Numbear Method Result Q PQL Unlts Run
Asetene 67-64-1 82800 ND 24 ug. 1
Benzene 74-43-2 82608 10 5.0 ugfl 1
Bromadickloramethane 75274 82606 ND 50 ugfl. 1
Hromuoform 75-25-2 82608 ND 50 ugfL 1
Bromomethane (Methyl bromide) 74-83-9 82608 ND 5.0 ug/L 1
2-Butanonc (MEK) 78-93-3 82608 ND 10 ugh. 1
Carbon tisulfide 75-15-0 82608 ND 50 ugit 1
Carbon tetrachloride 56-23-5 82608 ND 5.0 upn. 1
Chilorobenzene 108-80-7 82608 ND 5.0 g i
Chioraethane 75-00-3 82608 ND 5.0 ugic 1
Chloroform 67.66-3 82608 6.0 5.0 ug/L 1
Chloromethane (Methyl chloride) 74-87.3 82608 ND 8.4 ugi 1
Cycichexane 110-82-7 82608 ND 5.0 ugil 1
1,2-Divyrom.o-3-chloroprepance (DBCP) 88-12-8 82608 ND 5.0 ugil, 1
Dibramochloromethana 124-48-1 sz608 ND 5.0 ugil 1
1,2-Dibramroethane (EDB) 106-93-4 82608 ND 50 ugfl, 1
1,2-Dichlarohanzens 95-50-1 82600 ND 5.0 ug/l i
1.3-Dichlorabenzene 541-731 82608 ND 50 g/l 1
1.4-Dichlorohenzene 108-46-7 82808 ND 5.0 ug/L 1
Dichloradifunromathana 75-71-8 82608 NO 50 ugil 1
1,1-Dichlarosthans 75-34-3 62608 NO 5.0 ug/L 1
1.2-Dichloroethane 107-06-2 82608 ND 5.0 ugll. 1
1,1-Dichloroctheny 75-35-4 82608 ND 5.¢ ugil. 1
cis-1,2-Dichlorcethere 156-59-2 82608 ND 5.0 ugit 1
trans-1,2-Dichlorosthaene 156-80-5 8260B ND 5.0 ugit, 1
1,2-Dichloroprapane 75-87-5 82608 ND 540 ugft 1
ois-1,3-Dichloropropens 10061-01-5 82608 HD 5.0 ughl 1
{rans-1,3-Dichloropropenu 10G61-02-6 82808 ND 540 ugiL 1
Ethylbenzene 100-~41-4 82608 RD 8.0 ugi 1
2-Hexanone 591-78-6 82608 ND 10 ugll 1
isopropylbenzong 0£-82-8 82608 ND 5.0 ugiL 1
teathyi acatate 79.20-9 82608 ND 54 ugll 1
hethyl tertiary butyl ether (MTBE) 1634-044 82608 ND 5.0 ugil 1
4-thathyt-2-penitanona 108-10-1 82608 ND 10 ugl 1
Methylcysiohexane 108-87-2 82608 ND 5.0 ug/l 1
Methyleno chioride 75-08-2 826808 ND 50 ugl 1
Styrens 100-42-5 B8260B NG 5.0 ug/L 1
1,1,2 2-Tetrachloroethane 78-34-5 82608 ND 5.0 ug/l. 1
Teatrashloroethene 127-18-4 82608 ND 5.0 ug/l 1
Toluene 108-88-3 82608 ND 5.0 ugfl 1

PQ_ = Praciicol quantitation limit 8 = Deoterizd in tha mathae blprx F = Quantialion ol campount extesdad the calbestlor resge  H = Oul ¢f ho'ding time

KD = Not gatected ! or ebove the PAL J = Eslimaled rmsult < PO end » KOL P = The RPD tetuegn twe GC coumns excaeds 40% M = Racenory I aut of crilerla

Where applcab's, a1 vo! sempe analysis Sro repored o 3 doy woig it basls uriess fageos with 8 "W*

Page: 7 of 15

Shealy Environmanial Services, Ing.
06 Vantagw Poirl Dive  Wasl Columibla, SC 20172 {B03) 784-070C  Fax (4G:3) 7¢4-9111 wenn 2neslyla b com

SCBHEC FRC 17-RFR-12 Keenan Qil 35 of 119



Cient: ARM Environmental Services, Ine,

Description: TMW-2
Date Sempled: 117182016 1600
Date Raceived: 1142112048

Labaratory ID;RK21011-002
Mairix: Aqueous

Volatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS

Run Prep Method

Analytical Methed Dilution Analysis Date Analyst Prep Date Batch

1 50308 aza08 1 11126/2016 1221 TML 27802
CAS Analyticst

Paramseter Nurmiber _Method Result Q PQL Units Run
1.1,2-Trichloro-1,2,2-Trfueroothane 76-13-1 22608 ND 5.8 ugil 1
4.2.4-Trichlorobenzene 120-82-1 82608 ND 5.0 ugil, 1
1,1, 1-Trichinroethane 71-55-8 82608 ND 5.0 ugil 1
1,1,2-Trichtaroethane 75-00-8 82608 ND 5.0 ugll 1
Trichloroethane 79-01-6 82608 NI 5.0 ugrL 1
Trichioroflu oromethane 75-694% 82608 NG 5.0 ug/L 1
Vinyt chlonda 76-01-4 8260B ND 2.0 ug/L 1

1330-20-7 82608 ND 5.0 upil 1

Xytanes (lofal)

Run1  Acceplance

Surrogate Q % Recovery Limits
1,2-Dichloroethane-cé 92 70-130
Bromafluorobenzena 102 70-130

104 70-130

Tolvene-yl

FQL = Praclies] gueriiteten lmit
NG = Not detagiad ol o wbove e FQL

D = Detaxied In the metazd biank
J o Eslbnaled resUll < POLznd > MDL P = The RPY batwaen twa GO celsmrs axcands 49%

E = Quanbtation at compound excesded v csibrgtion senpe  H v Out of hulding lime
N = Rocovry is cul of silluris

Venere applicabio, 81 50 sump o Anglysls Bro repoitit Gn & ¢y welp i besis unlass Nugged with & *w°

Shealy Envircnmemial Sorsicas, Inc.

Fago: 8 of 15

108 Vantage Feint Dave  Wast Columbia, SC 28172 {803) 791-9700  Fax (803) 791-8111 www.shealylab.com

SCBHEC FRC 17-RFR-12 Keenan Qil 36 of 119



Labaratory ID: RK21041-003
Matrix: Aqueous

Client; ARM Environmental Sarvices, Inc.
Degcription: TMW.-3
Date Sempled:11/18)2016 1760
Date Recaived: 11/21/2016

Volatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS

Run Prep Mothod Analytical Method Dilution  Analysis Date Analyst  Prep Date Batch
1 50308 82608 1 11726/2016 1244 TML 27802
CAS Analytics!

Parameter Number Method Result © PQL Units Run
Acetone £7-64-1 82608 ND 20 ugh. 1
Benzens 71-43.2 B260B ND 5.0 ugil H
Bromodichiorometharie 75.27-4 B2E08 ND 5.0 uglL H]
Bromafomm 75:25.2 8260B ND 5.0 ug/L f
Bromomethans [Methyl brosmide} 74-83.9 82608 ND 5.0 ug'l 1
2-Butanone IMEK) 7B-93-3 B2608 ND 10 ugil 1
Carbon disuliide 75-18.0 82608 ND 5.0 ug/l. 1
Carbon tetrachieride 56-23-5 BREGB ND 5.0 ug/l 1
Chicrobenzene 108-80-7 82608 ND 5.0 ug/L 1
Chlgrooathane 75-00-3 826808 ND 5.0 ugil. 1
Chisroform 67-66-3 82608 ND 50 ugid 1
Chlaromathane (Methy! chiorlde) 74-87-3 82608 ND 5.0 ug/l 1
Cyclohexane 110-82-7 &260B NG 5.C ugil 1
1,2-Dikromo-3-chlaropropane {DBCP} 96-12-8 82608 NG 50 ugit 1
Dlbromachioromathane 124-48.1 82608 ND 5.4 ugit 1
1.2-Dibremoathane {EDB) 106-93-4 82608 ND 5.0 ugll 1
1.2-Dishicrobenzene §8.50-1 82608 KD 5.0 uglt 1
1.3-Dichlcrobenzena 541-73-1 82608 ND 540 ugil 1
1,4-Dichizrobenzene 106-46-7 82608 ND 50 ugll. 3
Dichlcrodifiveromothane 75-71-8 82808 ND h.0 ugllL 1
1.1-Dichlacoethane 758-34-3 82608 ND 50 ugiL i
1,2-Dichlaroathane 107-06-2 82608 ND 50 ug/l 1
1,1-Dichloreethens 75-35-4 82608 ND 5.0 ug/L 1
cls-1,2-Dienlcroothane 156-59-2 82608 ND 5.0 wgll i
trang-1,2-Dighlaraethene 15€-60-5 82608 ND 5.0 g/l 1
1,2-Dichioropropans 78-87-5 82608 ND 50 ugit 1
¢ls-1,3-Dichloropropene 10061-01-5 82608 ND 5.0 [TLLR 1
trans-1,3-Dichloroprapane 10061-02-6 82600 ND 5.0 ugft 1
Ethylbenzene 109-41-4 82608 ND 50 ugiL 1
2-Hexanone 591-78-6 82608 NO 10 ugh. 1
Iscpropylbenzene 98-82-8 82608 KD 5.0 ugil. 1
Methyl acetate 79.20-9 82608 ND 54 ught k!
Mathyl teriary butyl ether {MTBE) 1634-04-¢ 82608 ND 5.0 ugil 1
4-Meathyl-2-pentanone 108-10-1 82608 ND 10 ugfl, 1
Methyleyclohexane 108-87-2 82608 ND 5.0 ugll 1
Mothylena chiorde 75-09.2 82608 ND 50 ugit 1
Styrens 100-42-§ 82608 ND 50 o/l 1
11,2, 2-Tetrachicroothane 78-34-5 H260B ND 5.0 g/l 1
Tetrathloroethens 127-18-4 82608 ND 50 ugsl 1
Toluane 108-88-3 8260D ND 5.0 ug/l 1

PQL = Praclizal quanttaan Hmit B = Deleciad in the method blank E = Gunntitation of campeune axcasted tha Saltatian smags K = Qut of ho'ding time

N3 = Not detocled af or ahown the POL J & Exlimated tesult < PQY and > DL P » The RPD betwuen twe GG coumas excancs 444 N = Racovary ¥ aut of &riterla

Véruru arplcab'e, 21 goi sample analysls ara reparag or: a &y welgh! basis nless tagned wits 3 "W~

Pago: 9 of 16

Shealy Environments) Senvous, Ins,
106 Vantage Point Drive  Wast Columbig, SC 29172 (BO3) 761-0700  Fa (803) 791-5111 wwee shealylab.com

SCBHEC FRC 17-RFR-12 Keenan Qil 37 of 119



Laboratery ID:RK24011-003
Watrix: Aquaous

Clieni: ARM Environmental Services, Inc.
Dascription: TMW-3
Datu Sampiud: 1141872016 1700
Date Received: 11/21/2016

Volatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS

Run Prep Method. Analytical Method Dilution Analysis Date Analyst  Prep Date Batch
1 50308 82608 1 11426f2016 1244 TML 27902
CAS Analytical
Parameter L Number Method Result Q PQL Units Run
1.1.2-Trichlore-1,2, 2-Trifluoroethane 76-13-1 82600 NO 540 ugfl i
1.2, 4-Trichlarohenzene 120-82-1 ga608 KD 5.0 ugfl 1
1,1,1-Trichlorosthane 71-65-6 82608 KD 54 ugil. 1
1,1.2-Trichloroethane 79-00-5 82608 ND 5.0 ugl 1
Trichloroethene 78-01-8 82608 ND 5.0 ugfl 1
Irichlorofivosomethzne 75-68-4 82608 ND 5.0 ugl 1
Vinyl chipride 75-01-4 82608 ND 2.0 upt 1
Xylenes (fotal) 1330-20-7 8260B ND 5.0 uglt 1
Run1  Acceptance

Surrogate Q % Recovery Limits
1,2-Dichicroslhane-d4 92 70-130
Bromofiyargbenzene <13 70-130
Telueno-d8 bet] 70-130

FQL = Pracdical quam‘naﬁoﬁ il'nll B~ Detected In e methed tlank E = Quantitatian of conpeund pxrneded tha calitraban range  H = -Ous of dalding Bmyg

AL = Nat calecled a1 or atcve the PQL 4 = Eslimated resull < PQL wnd = MDL P = The RFD between two GC cofvnry uxceads 40% N = Racevery i oul of eakora

‘Whese pppleably, 21 sol szmpis analysls are repanee on 2 6% weighl basls tnsoss llagged whh 8 W*

Shealy Environmantal Senvzos, Ine. Page: 10 of 15

10¢ Vantape Po'nl Dive  West Columbie, SC 28172  (BD3) 781-870¢  Fax (803} 791-91171 ww shealylab.com

SCBHEC FRC 17-RFR-12 Keenan Qil 38 of 119



QC Summary

Shealy Environmental Services, Inc

Page: 11 of 1§
106 Vantage Point Orive  West Columbla, SC 29172  (803) 781-9700 Fax (803) 791-9111 www.shealylab.com

SCBHEC FRC 17-RFR-12 Keenan Qil 39 of 119



Volatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS - MB

Matrix: Aquaocus
Prep Method: 5030B

Sample ID: RQ27802-004
Batch: 27802
Analytical Method: 82608

Parameter Result Q D PQL Units Analysis Date
Acetona ND 1 20 ugsL 11/26/20186 1057
Benzene NO i1 5.0 ugl. 1112612016 1057
Bromodichloromethane ND 1 5.0 ugrL 142612016 1057
Bromatarm ND 1 5.0 ugsL 142612016 1057
Bromomethana {Matnyi bromide) ND 1 5.0 ugfl 11/26/2016 1057
2-Butanone (MEK) ND 1 10 qdl, 11726/2416 1057
Carbor disulfxle ND 1 5.0 ugiL 11/26/2016 1057
Carbon tetrackloride ND 1 5.0 ug/L 11)26/2096 1087
Chlorobanzene ND 1 5.0 ugh 11/26/2016 1057
Chioroethana ND 1 5.0 ugh 11/26/2016 1057
Chiloroforim ND 1 5.0 ugil 11/28/2016 1057
Chleromethane (Mathyl ehloride) ND 1 5.0 ugill 1172852016 1057
Cyclohexane ND 1 50 uglL 11/26/2016 1057
1,2-Dlbromo-3-chlorapropane (DBCP)  ND 1 8.0 ugil 11/28/2016 1057
Dibramochloramethane ND 1 5.9 ugdl. 111262016 1057
1,2-Dibrommoethane (EDR) ND 1 5.0 ugil 11/26/2016 1057
1.2-Dichlorcbienzene ND 1 5.0 ugil 11/26/2018 1057
1.3-Dichiorabenzene ND 1 5.0 ugfl 11/26:2018 1057
1,2-Dichlorabenzene NO 1 5.0 ugil 1172602615 1057
Dichlorsdiflusromothane NO 1 50 ugil 11/2612018 1057
1,2-Dickloraeshene NO 1 5.0 ugll 1172612016 1057
1,1-Dickloroethene ND 1 5.0 ugil 11/26/12016 1057
¢is-1,2-Dichloroclhene ND 1 5.0 ug/l, 112612016 1057
teatis<1,2-Dichlorosthena ND 1 5.0 ug/l 11262016 1057
1.7-Dichloraathena ND 1 5.0 ugil 11/26/2016 1057
1,2-Dickloropropane ND 1 5.0 ugiL 142812016 1057
trans-1.3-Dichleropropena ND 1 5.0 ugh. 1112612016 1057
cis-1,3-Dichlorapropene ND 1 5.0 g/l 12612016 1057
Ethylbenzena ND 1 5.0 vt 111262016 1057
2-Hexanone ND i 10 ugi 11/26/2016 1057
Isoprupylbenzens ND 1 5.0 ugf. 11128020145 057
Mathy! acatste ND 1 5.0 ugft 11/26/20%8 1057
Methyl wrisry butyl ether {MYBE) ND 1 3.0 ugl 11262046 1057
4-Methyl-2-pontanane ND 1 10 ugil. 11426/2016 1057
Methylcyzlohexane ND 1 50 ugiL 11/28620186 1057
Mothylene chioride ND 1 5.0 ugil. 11/26/2016 1067
Styrena ND 1 5. ug/L, 114262016 1057
1,1,2,2- Tetrachioroethane ND 1 5.0 ugiL 1172612016 1057
Telrachloroothene ND 1 59 ugilL 1142672016 1057
Toluene ND 1 8.0 ug/il 11/26/2018 1057
1,1,2-Trlchlaro-1,2,2-Trifiuoroethane ND 1 50 ugiL 11/28/2016 1657
1.2,4-Trichlorobenzeno ND 1 5.0 ugfl. 11/2&/2616 1057
1,1,2-Trichlorosthane ND 1 5.0 ugil 1182602615 1057
1,1, 1-Trichlarogthane ND 1 5.0 . ugiL 11/2812016 1057
PQL v Proctical caaniiiation timil P = The BPO bghrean tad GG aolumiy oxsasds 405 N = Rocowary in out of siterie
NI = Nez dateclsd Al ¢r sbeve tha FOL d @ Cxtrnatyd resuk £ POL sl » WOL « = RPD is out f pitana

Whera 2 pplicable, 22 501 seaple anuiysie ave repotes on 3 ey weighl baais urvess tasged win & “W*

Note: Calculations are performed before rounding to avoid round-off errars in calculated resuits

Shealy Eavironmatal Services, inc. Page: 12 of 15

106 Vantage Point Drve  West Golumbia, SC 29172 (603) 791-97CC  Fax (803} 7819111 www.shealylab.com

SCBHEC FRC 17-RFR-12 Keenan Qil 40 of 119



Volatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS - MB

Sample 1D: RORTE02-001 Matrix: Aquoous
Batch:27802 Prep Method: SQ30B
Analytical Method: 32608

Parameter Result Q Dil POL Units Analysls Date
Trichlorasthena ND 1 5.0 uedl 1152602016 1057
Trichlorofiuoromethone ND 1 5.0 ugll 11/26/2016 1057
Vinyl chilorige ND 1 2.0 ugil. 11262016 1057
Xylenes {total) NG 1 5.0 ug'l 112612016 1057
Accaptance

Surrogate & % Rec L!'r’nit
Bromofluorobenseno a7 70-130
1,2-Dichlareethane-gd 90 70-130
Toluene-d8 102 70-130

FQL - Practcai quantitazion limit P =The RPD b two GC col ds 4% N = Rezavery Iz o1 of crsona.

ND = Kol caloz2ee st o7 akava tha PGL J = Estimalad rasull « PQU and 2 WL + = RPD |5 ot of Crerid

Weliacw apiicovly, alt sol samals ans'yis ace revtried on @ dry weiaht basis unloxs flogged with 2 ™"

Note: Calculations are parformed before rounding to avoid reund-off errors in calculated resuits

Shealy Environmental Services, Inc. Page: 13 of 15
106 Vastage Pola Drive  Wesl Columbia, SC 20172 {803)794-9700 Fax {(803) 791-8111  wwwi.shealylak.com

SCBHEC FRC 17-RFR-12 Keenan Oil 41 of 119



Volatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS - L.CS

Matrix: Aquaous
Prap Mothod: 50308

Sampla I RQ27802-002
Bateh: 27802
Analytical Method; 8250B

Spiko
Amount Result % Rec
Parameter {ugiL) (ug/L) Q pil % Rec Lirmit Analysls Date
Acolone 100 92 1 82 60140 11/2652016 0559
Benzore 30 45 1 20 70-130 11/26/2016 0B59
Bramadichfaromethane 50 52 1 104 70-130 1172672016 0959
Bramoform 50 4R 1 86 70-130 1472672016 0859
Bromomethane (Methy! bromide) 50 48 1 g5 #0-140 11/26/2016 0959
Z2-Buiznons {MEK) 100 95 1 95 80-140 11/26!2016 0959
Carbon disuliide a0 38 1 77 60-140 114262016 0959
Carbon tatrachicride 30 i 1 86 70-130 11126120168 0659
Chlorobenzene 50 2] 9 a7 70-130 11/26/2016 0859
Chigroethane 50 42 1 84 69-140 11/26:2016 0859
Chloroform 50 47 1 g5 70-130 11/26:2016 0959
Chleromsihane {Pelhyl chiride) 50 56 1 111 60-140 11/26/2016 0959
Cyclohexane 50 40 1 ] 70-130 13/26/2016 0359
1.2-Dibromo-3-chloropropanc {OBCP) 50 50 1 101 70-130 11/26/2016 04859
Dibromechleromethane 50 48 1 96 70-130 1472642016 0959
1,2-Dikromoethzne {EDB) 50 48 1 95 70-130 11262016 0959
1.4-Dichlorobenzene 50 47 1 94 70-130 111262016 0958
1.3-Dichloroberzene 50 49 1 98 70-130 11/26/2016 0959
1,2-Dishlorabenzena 50 49 1 a7 70-130 11/2812016 0959
Dichiorodifluoromsthana 50 51 1 104 60-140 11/26,2016 0959
1,2-Dichloroethane 50 48 1 Q7 70-130 11426/2016 Q959
1,1-Dichicraethane 50 45 9 9 70-130 11/26/2016 0958
¢is-1,2-Dichloroethene 50 43 1 87 70130 11/26/2016 0954
trans-1,2-Dichlsroethena 50 43 1 86 70-130 11/26/2016 0959
1.1-Dichioroethena 50 42 1 83 70-130 11/26/2016 0959
1,2-Dichloropropane 50 48 1 96 70-130 11/26/2016 0959
trans-1 3.Dichloropropene 50 47 1 a5 70-130 11/26/2016 0959
cis-1,3-Dichioraprapene 50 48 1 9% 70-130 11/28/2018 0959
Ethylhanzane 50 50 1 100 70-130 11/26:2016 0959
2-Hexanone 100 110 1 106 60-144 11/26/2018 0B59
Isopropylbenzens 50 48 1 a6 70-130 112672016 0959
Methyl ecetate 50 41 1 82 80-140 11/26/2016 0959
Methyt tertiary butyl otner (MTBE) 50 43 1 86 70-130 11/26/2016 0359
A-Methyl-2-pentanone 100 114 1 105 60-140 11/26/2016 0859
Methyicyclchexane &0 44 1 84 70-130 11/26/2016 0959
Motnyglene chiorlde &0 41 1 81 70-130 11/26/2016 0959
Styrane 50 52 1 104 70-13Q 11/26/2016 0959
1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroetnane 50 50 1 99 70-130 11/26{2016 0958
Tetrachioroethane 4] 48 1 95 70-130 11/26/2016 0959
Toluane 50 49 1 98 70130 11726/2016 0959
1.1,2-Trichlora-1,2,2-Trifluoros:hane 89 41 1 82 70-130 1172602016 095¢
1.2.4-Trichlorobgnzene 50 48 1 a2 70-130 11126/2016 0958
1,1,2-Trichlorosthana 50 48 1 96 70-130 11/26/2016 (959
1,1,4-Trichlorosthane 50 46 1 93 70130 11/26/2016 0959
POL = Practizal guanstaticn bl F = Ths RPD kaN twi G530 &0l : 4% N = Regovery s aut of ellwila
NG = Not datacted s of above the PQL J = EsUrated resus < POL ard > WOL + = RPD is aut uf crilesdu

'Whare npplizsble, all scil sernple urelysz ae ropotted on a dry we'gh! Fans urless fisggoc with a "A™

Nate: Calculations are performed before rounding to aveid round-off errors in calcuiated results

Shoaly Enviranmental Services, Ing. Page: 14 of 15

106 Venlags Foinl Drive  Wasl Columb.a, 8C 29172 {803) 751.8700  Fox {803) 791-9111  www shoatylab pom

SCBHEC FRC 17-RFR-12 Keenan Qil 42 of 119



Volatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS - LCS

Sample ID: RQ27&02-002 Matrix: AQueous
Batch:27802 Prap Method: 50308
Analytical Method: 82608
Splke )
Amount Result % Rec
Parameter {ugiL) {ugil) Q Dit % Rec Limit Anslysis Date
Trichlorogthene 56 48 1 o8 70-130 114262016 0859
Trichlorofluoramethang 50 53 1 108 70-130 11726/2018 0955
Vinyl chlarice 50 46 1 9t 70-130 11726/2016 0958
Xylenes {tolal) 100 100 1 104 70130 114262016 0955
; Acceptance
Surrogate Q % Rec Lf'r’nll
Bromofluorobenzene 100 70-130
i.2-Dichlorcethane -4 L] 70-130
Totluono-J8 100 706-130
HG, = Pracicel qanvilliation mit P = The RPO between two GT oblillnng excsers 20% N = Recovery 1k 0L of chibala
KD = Nct detacled ot or sheve the FCOL J = Estimated reaut « PAL ard > MOL + = RPD |5 cut of eitars

Whara applicalis, 8l 431 SEEe 6nolysis At TAparEC an B Oy wEgh Dasls urlass Tagnus with a =A™

Note: Calculations are performed before rounding to avold round-off errors in calculated results

Shaanty Eevironmenial Sorviees, ine.

Pagea: 15 of 15
108 Vantegs Polnt Drive  West Calumbla, 5C 29172 (A03) 7913700 Fax (B03) 791-9111  www.shealylah.con

SCBHEC FRC 17-RFR-12 Keenan Qil 43 of 119



Chain of Custody
and
Miscellaneous Documents

Shealy Environmental Sarvices, in¢,
106 Vanlage Polnf Drive  West Columbia, SC 29172 (803) 781-9700 Fax (803) 791-9111  www.shealylab com

SCBHEC FRC 17-RFR-12 Keenan Oil 44 of 119



A\ smowark  CHAIN OF CUSTODY RECORD  mees_or)

SESSMENT & REMEDIAL S8ERVICES DIVISION

7 1% STREET SOUTH EXTENSION COLUMBIA, mumcmm:m 29209 o PHONE B0T-763311 " FAX 803.785-2567
ool FECCLNE p REQUESTED PARAMETERS o
2811t 1?,7,!{(1‘ SUmrER ST. MATRIX ! {' 'f T ’} , ! |]I ! {l /
IPLERS SIGNATURE _ LANORATORY UTILIZED : & I | / | '
vilee be SHEALY S Fo wsamm f
- - o | { f RK21011 :

SaMpre DATE | TWME jsomr cm] LOCATION o ) | f [

T ]
Mo~ e 15 5] | Tmw =) 5% nv |
w2 | ] |is:oo) [rom-2| 2| YV |

-3 | v 17799 'L/' Thiw.2 | % |V

!
i
H

NGQLISHED BY [ET&\IALU@E) DATE | TIME | RECEIVED BY (SIGNATURE) pavz | TE AN

wbee Wl Nup )19 £ or iy a1

munsrsso 5Y (SIGNATURF) DATE | TWE |RECENEDBY (SKGHATURE) DATE | TIME

ﬁ/? CWJ -3 73518 15//:!6’@/ il 13 | V

wis T I
T

SCBHEC FRC 17-RFR-12 Keenan Oil 45 of 119



SHEALY ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES, INC.

Sbesty Envirauneensst Nars s, Isa Page Jal |
Crtgmen Number VE0019E-05 Flective Dumes 1171853016
Eapiey Date: 11102051

Sample Receipt Checklist (SRC)

Client; /? fx’lﬁ} Couler Inspericd bysdats: 5 ;*,g,f' fitdn (e Latd: gy o4y

Means of receipt; @ SES! © Client « UPS o FedEx o Other

Yes 1 No g I. Were cusiody seals present on the cooler?

Yesg Wao

h_ {NAg 2, Il vuslody seuls were present, wese they intact and unbroken?

pH steip 1D

Clswip §0:_

P38 1.

Method ot cooliil;

Copler 1ID/Origi na} temperature upon receipt/Derived (coreeolil) winperatiore upon receipt:
*C / / . / i~ ) B
Method: g’ Temperaturs Blank o Against Botiles IRGunID:_{ IR Gun Correclion Factor: .2 *C

/ °C / ! G

Wetlee nBlualee oDrvice o None

Yes £ No g

NA 3. If lemperature of any cooler excerded 6,0°C, was Project Manager Notified?
(’1 PM was Notified by: phone / emuil 7 face-to-face (cirels one).

Yeso Non Na & | 4, Is the commercial courior's packing slip atached to 1His form?
Yesp- [ Non ! 3._Were proper custody procedures (teliuquishedircecivad) Tollnweq?
Yeso [ Noo 6. Were sample 105 Hsied on the COC?
Yos.er Noc 1. _Were sample 1Ds listed on sl] sample containers?
Yes.o Nos 8. Was collection date & thme listed on the COC?
Yes = Nan 9. Wus calicetion dule & time listed on alf sanple comaineis?
Yess” [ Nog 10. Did all container labe! information (ID, date, time) agree with the COC?
Yesz | Noo 11, Were 1ests 10 be perforued lisked on the (007
Yz | Now 12, Did all zamples arrive in the praper coutainers for each es and/ar in good condition
2 {unbroken, lids on, etc.)?
Yes [ Nop 13, Was adeguale sample vofume available?
Yes 1y Nod 14, Wore all samples received within % the holding time of 48 hours, whichcver comes first?
Yes o No~ %l | L5 Were any samples conlwiners missing'excess {cirele one) samples Not Nisted an COC?
Y a1z Moz | NA@a—| 16, Wore bubbles present > pea-size” (¥ or 6mm in diameler) in any YOA vials?

YesC Noo

NAA |17, Were al] DRO/metals/nulticnt gamplex received at & pH of < 27

Yes s Nvao

NAE | 18, Were al] cyanide and/or sulfide samples roveived staph >127

Yeso Noy

NA 19, Were all applicable N1H3/TKN/cyanide/phenol/BNA (=0.2my/L) samples free of resiguat
4 chilorine?

Yos o Nog

NA V| 2D, Wers collection remperatures documentad on the COC Jor NC ssmples?

Yes g Noc

NA K 21, Were client remarks/requests (ie. requested dilutions, MSMSD designations, ¢ic...)
___| correctly iranscribed from the COC into the commen! seclion in LIMS?

Y3 No ¢f

22, Was thz quote mumber used taken from the container lahel?

{ Sumple Prescrvation  (Musl bs completed for any semprle(s) invorrectly preserved or with headipace,)

{ Sampla(s)

Sanple(s) wers received incomoatly preserved and were sdjusted accordingly in
sample receiving with {H380,, HNOs, HCi, NasOR) uzing SR ¢ ,

Samplels) wers received with bubbles >6 mm in diancter.

Sumples(s) werne recvived with TRC >0.2 mg/L (IF$21 is No) and were

njusted accordingly in sample receiving with sodlum tifostifat: (Na:S:0y) with Shealy ID:
| SC Drinking Water Project Saunple(s) pil verified ta be < 2 by Date:

Sampls lzbels applied b&:j&ﬁ’

Not reccived at a pH of < 2 and were adjusted accordingly using SR&

Varified by: Date:_t)f2.] 1V,

were

Comments:

A

g

Snealy Environmarntsi Sasvices, Ing,
108 Vaniage Poinl Drive  West Columbia, SC 29172  {803) 761-5700 Fax {803) 781-9111  www shealylab com

SCBHEC FRC 17-RFR-12 Keenan Qil 46 of 119



N

el
v N . . . N R ,
& - Propesad Soil Boring! lemporary Monitoring Well Location
Project Figure 2

—

Phase I - SA Proposal
2244 Sumiter Strecd

Columbia. South Carolina

Date

No Scale ! October 2016

Sie Plan

ENVIROKMENT /i
SERVICES, INC.

SCBHEC FRC 17-RFR-12 Keenan Oil 47 of 119



Board:

V-
q ) Allen Amsler, Chairman Charles M. Joye |l, P.E.
ec Ann B. Kirol, DDS, Secretary L. Clarence Batts, Jr.
R. Kenyon Wells David W. Gillespie, MD

Healthy People.
ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF REQUEST FOR FINAL REVIEW
TO: Keenan Energy Company f/k/a Keenan Qil Co., Inc. Requestor/Permittee
W. Thomas Lavender, Attorney for Requestor
Sara P. Bazemore, Attorney for Department
FROM: Lisa Lucas Longshore, Cierk
RE: Docket No. 17-RFR-12, Keenan Oil Co., Inc.
Requirement of payment of deductible before access to SUPERB.
DATE: February 15, 2017

A Request for Final Review of the above-referenced decision was filed on February 8, 2017. A copy
of the request is attached. The Board of Health and Environmental Control will notify you by mail as
to whether it will conduct a final review conference in this matter.

The Board has 60 days from the date of receipt of a Request for Final Review to conduct a final
review conference. If a final review conference is scheduled, all parties will be given at least 10
calendar days’ written notice of the conference.

Procedures for final review conferences and requesting further review are provided in S.C. Code
Section 44-1-60. Additional information on procedures will be provided to you after the Board
decides whether to conduct a final review conference in this matter.

The above information is provided as a courtesy; parties are responsible for complying with all
applicable legal requirements.

S.C. Department of Health and Environmental Control

SCBHEC FRC 17-RFR-12 Keenan Qil 48 of 119



Board:

q Allen Amsler. Chalrman Charles M. Joye i, P.E.
e‘ : Ann B. Kirol, DDS, Secretary L. Clarence Batts, Jr.
R. Kenyon Wells David W. Gillespie, MD

Healthy People. Healthy Communities

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

l, Lisa Lucas Longshore, Clerk of the SC Board of Health and Environmental Control and an
employee of the South Carolina Department of Health and Environmental Control, hereby certify
that | have this 15th day of February 2017, served the foregoing Acknowledgement of Request for
Final Review and Notice of Procedures - Docket No. 17-RFR-12, upon all parties and/or counsel of
record by electronic mail delivery as indicated below:

W. Thomas Lavender, Jr.
tlavender@nexsenpruet.com
Nexsen Pruet, LLC

Post Office Drawer 2426
Columbia, SC 29202

Joan Hartley
jhartley@nexsenpruet.com
Nexsen Pruet, LLC

Post Office Drawer 2426
Columbia, SC 29202

bazemosp

Sara P. Bazemore

SCDHEC - Office of General Counsel
2600 Bull Street

Columbia, SC 29201

k'é-ev\v'u-u \U\LJ\M

Lisa Lucas Longshore, Clerk

February 15, 2017
Columbia, South Carolina

S.C. Department of Health and Environmental Control

SCBHEC FRC 17-RFR-12 Keenan Qil 49 of 119



Board:

!: Allen Amsler, Chairman R. Kenyon Wells
A

ec Ann B. Kirol, DDS, vice Chair Charles M. Joye I, PE

L. Clarence Batts, Jr., Secretary David W. Gillespie, MO

Healthy People. Healthy Communities

March 17, 2017

Via Email and U.S. Mail Certified 9214 8969 0099 9790 1407 7258 69
W. Thomas Lavender, Jr.

Joan W. Hartley

Nexsen Pruet

Post Office Drawer 2426

Cotumbia, SC 29202

Via Electronic Mail Delivery

Sara P. Bazemore

SCDHEC - Office of General Counsel
2600 Bull Street

Columbia, SC 29201

RE: Docket No. 17-RFR-12, Keenan Energy Company f/k/a Keenan Oil Company, Inc.
Dear Counsel of Record:

The South Carolina Board of Health and Environmental Control (“Board”) will conduct a Final Review
Conference during the Board meeting on Wednesday, April 5, 2017, at 10:00 a.m. in the Board Room
(3420), of the South Carolina Department of Health and Environmental Control, 2600 Bull Street,
Columbia, South Carolina, on the above referenced matter.

The Board has approved the following procedures to be used during the Final Review Conference:

e Swear all witnesses (if court reporter is present)
* Presentation by parties
o Order of presentation:
= DHEC Staff - 5 minutes
* Requestor, Keenan Energy Group - 10 minutes
o Rebuttal:
= DHEC Staff - 10 minutes
* Requestor, Keenan Energy Group - 5 minutes
 Parties may present evidence; rules of admissibility of evidence do not apply
* Atany time during conference, officers conducting conference may request additional
information and may question parties and anyone providing information
e Burden of proof is on Requestor(s)
e Presiding officer may impose time limits
e Conference is open to the public
e Officers may deliberate in closed session
» Officers may announce decision at conclusion of conference or may reserve consideration

S.C. Department of Health and Environmental Control
2600 Bull Street. Cotumbia. SC 29201 (803) 898-3432 www.scdhec.gov
SCBHEC FRC 17-RFR-12 Keenan Oil 50 of 119



If any party would like to have a transcript of the review conference, please notify, via e-mail, the
Clerk of Board by Friday, March 31, 2017, so that arrangements can be made to have a reporter
present for the conference. The parties requesting a court reporter will be responsible for payment
of the court reporter.

Sincerely,

Lisa Lucas Longshore
Clerk

SCBHEC FRC 17-RFR-12 Keenan Oil 51 of 119



	agenda
	Item #2 - Placement of Dronabinol in Schedule II for SC Controlled Substances
	Item #3 FRC - 17-RFR-12 Keenan Oil Co - Admin Record (bates)
	1.24.2017 Staff Decision Keenan
	RFR
	17-RFR-12 Staff Response
	Clerk Corespondence
	Letter Scheduling FRC 17-RFR-12 (3-17-17)




